Public Document Pack

HRE CITY OF
LGcoln

COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 29 May 2019 5.30 pm Committee ':Izﬁms 1-2, City
Membership: Councillors Naomi Tweddle (Chair), Bob Bushell (Vice-Chair),

Biff Bean, Bill Bilton, Alan Briggs, Kathleen Brothwell, Chris Burke,
Gary Hewson, Ronald Hills, Rebecca Longbottom and
Edmund Strengiel

Substitute members: Councillors Jackie Kirk and Neil Murray

Officers attending: Mick Albans, Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron
Manning and Louise Simpson

The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda.
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant
information.

Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved,
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as
part of the process.

Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the
table at the relevant time.

AGENDA

SECTION A Page(s)

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 24 April 2019 5-16
2. Declarations of Interest

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct,

when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and

nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest

(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.

3. Work to Trees in City Council Ownership 17 - 22



4. Applications for Development

Application for Development: 8 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln
Application for Development: 97 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln
Application for Development: 4 Southland Drive, Lincoln
Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln

Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln (LBC)

23 - 56

57 - 82

83-94

95 - 106

107 - 118



THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 (AS AMENDED)

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and
Advertisement Applications are:

1. The Planning Application File. This is a file with the same reference number as that
shown on the Agenda for the Application. Information from the planning application file
is available online at https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

The application files contain the following documents:

the application forms;

plans of the proposed development;

site plans;

certificate relating to ownership of the site;

consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies;
letters and documents from interested parties;

memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council.

@0 aoow

2. Any previous Planning Applications referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for the
particular application or in the Planning Application specified above.

3. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan — Adopted April 2017

4. National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012

5. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 5
above set out in the following table. These documents may be inspected at the Planning
Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln.

APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 5 above.)

Application No.: Additional Background Papers


https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006)

Criteria:

e Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of
information.

e Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc.

e Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason
of economic or environmental impact.

e Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in
the area of a site.

¢ Significant proposals outside the urban area.
e Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development.

e Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control.

e Development which could create significant hazards or pollution.

So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears
essential.

A proforma is available for all Members. This will need to be completed to request a site visit
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site
visit. It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration
of a planning application at Committee. It should also be used to request further or additional
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.



ltem No. 1

Planning Committee 24 April 2019

Present: Councillor Jim Hanrahan (in the Chair),
Councillor Naomi Tweddle, Councillor Biff Bean,
Councillor Alan Briggs, Councillor Kathleen Brothwell,
Councillor Chris Burke, Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor
Gary Hewson, Councillor Ronald Hills and Councillor
Edmund Strengiel

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Bill Bilton

86. Confirmation of Minutes - 27 March 2019

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 March 2019 be
confirmed.

87. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Chris Burke declared a Personal and Pecuniary Interest with regard to
the agenda item titled 'Lord Tennyson House, 72 Rasen Lane, Lincoln'. Reason:
He sat on the Board of the YMCA.

He left the room during the discussion of this item and took no part in the vote on
the matter to be determined.

Councillor Edmund Strengiel declared a Personal and Pecuniary Interest with
regard to the agenda item titled 'Lord Tennyson House, 72 Rasen Lane, Lincoln'.
Reason: He was a Director of the YMCA.

He left the room during the discussion of this item and took no part in the vote on
the matter to be determined.

88. Member Statements

In the interest of transparency:

e Councillor A Briggs requested it be noted that his son worked for a local
demolition firm, although he had no influence or involvement in securing
contracts or the management of the business.

e Councillor C Burke requested it be noted that he had drunk at the Golden
Cross Pub more than 6 months ago.

e Councillors C Burke and G Hewson requested it be noted that they knew
two of the objectors to the planning application as a passing acquaintance.

e Councillors B Bean, K Brothwell, B Bushell and J Hanrahan requested it
be noted that they knew one of the objectors to the planning application as
a passing acquaintance.

89. Work to Trees in City Council Ownership

The Arboricultural Officer:



90.

a.

advised members of the reasons for proposed works to tree’s in City
Council ownership and sought consent to progress the works identified, as
detailed at Appendix A of his report

explained that Ward Councillors had been notified of the proposed works
stated that in some cases it was not possible to plant a tree in the exact

location and in these cases a replacement would be replanted in the
vicinity.

RESOLVED that the works set out in the schedule at Appendix A attached to the
report be approved.

Application for Development: 431 - 434 High Street, Lincoln

The Principal Planning Officer:

a.

advised that planning permission was sought for the demolition of an
existing Public House and the erection of a three storey building to
accommodate 47 bedrooms with en suite bathrooms for use as student
accommodation, with associated access, car parking and landscaping
(revised plans)

described the application site as roughly square in shape occupied by the
two-storey Golden Cross Public House built in 1959, located to the eastern
side of High Street at the junction with Queen Street, with commercial
properties in all directions and residential development close by to the
north, south and east

highlighted that only the access for the development from Queen Street
was fixed in this application, all other details including the layout of the site;
and scale of the buildings were indicative at this stage along with the
appearance of the buildings and any landscaping, to be agreed through
subsequent application(s) for Reserved Matters

highlighted that the building was prominent in its locality, within the Gowts
Bridge Conservation Area, shown within the Local Plan, and not allocated
for a specific use

provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP2  The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy

Policy LP3 Level and Distribution of Growth

Policy LP9  Health and Wellbeing

Policy LP12 Infrastructure to Support Growth

Policy LP13 Accessibility and Transport

Policy LP14 Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk

Policy LP16 Development on Land Affected by Contamination
Policy LP25 The Historic Environment

Policy LP26 Design and Amenity

Policy LP29 Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character

Policy LP33 Lincoln's City Centre Primary Shopping Area and
Central Mixed Use Area

6



e Policy LP35 Lincoln's Regeneration and Opportunity Areas
e Policy LP36 Access and Movement within the Lincoln Area
e National Planning Policy Framework

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

referred to the update sheet which contained a consultation response from
NHS England requesting a contribution towards healthcare, a further
response from Lincoln Civic Trust and a local resident, and a revised
suggested officer recommendation taking into account measures to
procure an S106 financial contribution in relation to health infrastructure

. advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the

application to assess the proposal with regard to:

The Principle of the Development and Service Provision;
The Design of the Proposals and their Visual Impact;

The Implications of the Proposals upon Amenity;
Sustainable Access, Highway Safety and Traffic Capacity;
Archaeology;

Drainage;

Land Contamination and Air Quality; and

The Planning Balance.

concluded that:

e The presumption in favour of sustainable development required by
the National Planning Policy Framework would apply to the
proposals as there would not be conflict with any of the three
strands of sustainability that would apply to development as set out
in the planning balance.

e There would not be harm caused by approving the development so
it was the recommendation of officers that the application should
benefit from planning permission for the reasons identified in the
report and subject to the planning conditions outlined within it.

Councillor J Hanrahan, Chair, highlighted to members that the planning
application before them tonight was for outline approval to consider the principle
of the development and access point into the site only. All other details including
the layout of the site; and scale of the buildings were indicative at this stage to be
agreed through subsequent application(s) for Reserved Matters.

Councillor Helena Mair, addressed Planning Committee as Ward Advocate in
respect of the proposed development, covering the following main points:

She thanked members of Planning Committee for allowing her the
opportunity to speak.

She represented the residents of Park Ward and in particular around the
area of Queen Street.

She was pleased to see revisions having been made to the original plans
following concerns raised by local residents.

She had concerns regarding the size of the three storey development from
the Queen Street side.



The entrance to Queen Street was narrow, occupied by low two storey
houses, the three storey development on that side would create a dark and
overbearing situation.

The scale of the building was out of proportion with everything else in the
area.

Even taking into account the revised plans with dropped elevations to the
roof form, the proposed development was still taller than others in the
area.

This council had a pledge to build a thriving community with a sense of
belonging.

The scheme included 47 bedrooms.

Residents considered that the impact on people living here in an already
densely populated area would be adversely affected by the size/massing
of the proposed building going into Queen Street.

Mr Chris Henderson, agent, addressed Planning Committee in support of the
planning application on behalf of the applicant, covering the following main points:

He thanked members of Planning Committee for allowing him the
opportunity to speak.

He highlighted that the reasons behind the need for the development
needed to be explained.

Pubs were closing down due to changes in the dynamics of the city.

Beer sales were at a ten year low due to high taxes and cheap alcohol
made available at supermarkets.

The city’s economy as a whole was a striving success due to the existence
of the University and was set to further prosper.

The introduction of a medical school would certainly help.

Local business would benefit from the proposed development in terms of
footfall and additional spend in the area.

There had been objections regarding the design of the building. Lengthy
conversations had been held to alleviate concerns and significant changes
made to the plans to the satisfaction of planning/conservation officers.

The development was appropriate to its location and area.

The height of the building had been reduced to make it appropriate to the
Conservation area.

Other streets had similar arrangements on street corners with
developments reducing from three storey going down to two storeys.

He hoped members would support the proposals in the interest of
benefit/prosperity of the local area and community.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.

Individual members raised concerns in respect of the proposed development in
relation to:

The status of the planning application as applied for in indicative form. A
full application would have allowed members to consider the proposals as
a whole.

The existing area already densely populated with narrow streets.

Whether the area now had enough student accommodation and should be
used instead for social housing for local people.

Scale, density and massing of the building taking up the whole of the site

to the front rather than being set back.
8



e |Issues with access to the parking area at the back of the development due
to the narrow road.

e Students being expected to share a number of kitchens on site.

e Lack of car parking space.

e The fixed access for the application was related to the number of people
living in the building, yet we were being asked to consider these remaining
details as an indicative planning application

Other members offered support to the principle of the proposed development in
terms of:

e The need for student accommodation.

e The public house having previously opened and closed many times due to
lack of viability.

e Increasing student accommodation in the area having not reached
saturation point in terms of Article 4.

e The realisation that had members been asked to vote on a full application,
support would have been offered in terms of it providing purpose built
student accommodation to relieve pressure on social housing.

Members asked for clarification regarding the response made by Lincolnshire
County Council requesting existing accesses onto Queen Street and High Street
to be permanently closed and returned to footway construction within seven days
of the new access being brought into use.

The Principal Planning Officer advised that this request related to existing
dropped kerbs being closed off when not required to maintain one access point
into the site.

A motion was proposed by Councillor Hewson and seconded by Councillor C
Burke that the planning application be approved as follows in principle, with fixed
access via Queen Street:

That authority is delegated to the Planning Manager to finalise the planning
conditions listed below and the obligation necessary to procure the s.106 financial
contribution in relation to health infrastructure. However, should the applicant
subsequently fail to meet these requirements, it could undermine the principles of
sustainable development outlined in the Framework. As such, if the S106
agreement has not been signed within six months of the date of Planning
Committee, and there is no reasonable prospect of doing so, the Planning
Manager will refer the application back to the Planning Committee for further
consideration by Members.”

Timeframe for Permission (Inclusive of Reserved Matters);
Reserved Matters;
Approved Plans;
Archaeology;
No Demolition of Existing Building Before a Scheme has been Approved
and a Contract Agreed for its Development;
Noise Assessment for Construction of Building;
Contaminated Land;
Closure of Existing Access;
Cycle Storage;
Highways Construction Management Plan;
9



91.

Working and Delivery Hours;

Arrangements for Management of the Occupation of the Building;
External lighting scheme;

Refuse Storage / Collection;

Electric Vehicle Recharge Points;

Boundary Walls and Fences; and

Drainage Works (Surface and Foul Water).

The motion was put to the vote and was lost.

A motion was proposed by Councillor Tweddle and seconded by Councillor
Strengiel to defer the planning application.

The Planning Manager offered the following points of clarification in relation to
potential deferment:

e The planning application in front of members was in outline form.

e The application would need to be withdrawn and resubmitted if required as
a full application, however, it was within the gift of the applicant only to do
this.

e Should the application be deferred tonight it would still be negotiated under
the parameters of the existing outline form.

The motion to defer the planning application was put to the vote and was lost.

A motion was proposed by Councillor Bushell and seconded by Councillor Hills to
refuse planning permission, put to the vote, and;

RESOLVED that planning permission be refused.

Reason: Insufficient information to demonstrate that the development in principle
could be accommodated within the Conservation Area.

Application for Development: Lord Tennyson House, 72 Rasen Lane, Lincoln

(Councillors C Burke and Strengiel left the room during the discussion and
determination of this item, having declared a personal and pecuniary interest in
the matter to be discussed.)

The Planning Manager:

a. described the location of Lord Tennyson House to the north side of Rasen
Lane on the corner of the entrance with Sastangate House, opposite Cecil
Street, with all other boundaries occupied by residential terrace properties

b. advised that planning permission was sought to vary Condition 13 of
planning permission reference 2015/0530/F, granted 18 September 2015,
which prohibited the occupation of the building by anyone other than
students; the apartments had been occupied by students of Bishop
Grosseteste University since opening

c. highlighted that the applicants had stated that the University had recently
exercised their right to a clause which broke the lease of these student
accommodation blocks; as this had only just been received there was a
reduced chance of securing itg full occupation for the next academic year



d.

reported that permission was now sought to vary condition 13 to:-

e “Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or
any subsequent re-enactment or revocation thereof) the
accommodation hereby approved shall only be used by students or
those provided with supported living accommodation and for no
other residential use without the prior consent of the City Council as
Local Planning Authority’.

outlined the site history in relation to the application site as detailed within
the officer’s report

provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

¢ National Planning Policy Framework
e Central Lincoln Local Plan — Policy LP26 Design and Amenity

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

referred to the update sheet which contained a further response received
from Lincoln Civic Trust, together with a revised proposed officer
recommendation in relation to Condition No 13

advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the
application to assess the proposal with regard to:

¢ Residential Amenity
e Visual Amenity
e Applicants Reasons for Varying Condition 13

concluded that:

e The variation to allow the occupation of the apartments by both
students and as supported living accommodation would have no
adverse impacts on neighbouring residents nor result in any visual
impacts.

e The condition still allowed control of car parking which was the
reason for the condition being imposed on the original consent.

e Therefore it was acceptable to allow the variation and it accorded
with national and local planning policy.

Councillor Donald Nannestad, addressed Planning Committee as Ward Advocate
in relation to the proposed development, covering the following main points:

He thanked members of Planning Committee for allowing him the
opportunity to speak.

He raised concerns regarding the way in which this issue had been dealt
with.

According to comments made by objectors, they understood that the
application requested authority to remove the condition requiring the
premises to be occupied only by students, reverting to open access for all,
although this was not the case.

11



There was no mention of provision for supported living accommodation
displayed on the planning notice on site.

Had the planning notice been set out as per the officer's report most
people would not have objected.

Residents were concerned that the development would acquire permission
for the premises to be accommodated without restriction which wasn’t
what this was about.

Residents were not against YMCA accommodation, other supported
housing operating in the vicinity was managed very well by this
organisation.

Mr Phil Scrafton, representing Globe Consultants, agent, addressed Planning
Committee on behalf of the applicant in support of the planning application,
covering the following main points:

He hoped he would be able to clarify this matter in a relatively simple form.
The development included 13 car parking spaces for 12 apartments.

The lease for the property had not been renewed by Bishop Grosseteste
University.

Some students may still want to remain at Lord Tennyson House and this
was not an issue. The accommodation was accredited by the University
and in close proximity to the campus.

The University now had other needs.

The YMCA were happy to take on the lease for the remainder of the
accommodation.

Provision of off-street parking was sufficient for the scheme.

To allow flexibility for YMCA use, Condition 13 required an amendment to
be made to allow YMCA occupation as well as student accommodation.
The agent had waited for the YMCA to firm up its interest in the
accommodation before advertising this in the public domain.

Further consultation on the revised use had since been carried out, in
order to arrive at the current position.

The Planning Manager advised that planning officers could not support the
removal of condition 13 in its entirety. The application was then varied to allow
student and supported living accommodation at the premises and further
consultation carried out on that basis.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.

Individual members made comments in relation to the proposed development as
follows:

We were told that the city did not have enough student accommodation,
although in this case the University had not renewed its lease agreement.
Could an assurance be given that the flats would remain as single
occupancy and that study rooms would not be converted into bedrooms.
Perhaps the accommodation could be offered to the University of Lincoln.
YMCA support staff would require car parking spaces.

We should look into whether student occupation had to be specifically high
density accommodation.

Student accommodation was not always fully utilised due to it being less
affordable than alternative family accommodation.

12



Students had different lifestyles to those living in supported
accommodation.

There was concern that a precedent could be set here putting a caveat on
the type of permitted living only to be overturned at a later date.

Potential safeguarding issues may arise with mixed occupation.

The Planning Manager offered the following points of clarification:

A precedent would not be set here as each planning application was
considered on its own merits.

Members concerns regarding the premises previously being identified
solely for student accommodation were appreciated. The original model
working within the planning process had been based on the requirement to
have a reduced impact on parking pressure in the area. The existing
operation of supported accommodation provided by the YMCA on Rasen
Lane demonstrated that supported accommodation would not be made
worse by the proposals.

It was not known what the overall mix of student/supported
accommodation mix would be, however, the YMCA would be on site to
manage their side of the scheme.

The Bishop Grosseteste University had not specified why it had not
renewed its tenancy. The remit of Planning Committee was to assess the
impact of the proposals before it this evening.

It was not possible to impose a condition regarding single occupancy at
this point. It was highlighted at the time planning permission was originally
granted although there had not been many complaints in term of volume of
occupancy and it seemed to be working smoothly.

Safeguarding was not a planning issue. It would be an integral inherent
requirement of the YMCA to manage the facility taking into account this
matter in the discharge of their responsibilities.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions.

All those conditions on the previous application which are still valid:-

Prior to the installation of any stationary external plant or machinery
(including air source heat pumps), a noise impact assessment report shall
be submitted to the planning authority for approval.

The arrangements shown on the approved plan for the
parking/turning/manoeuvring/loading/ unloading of vehicles shall be
available at all times when the premises are in use.

Any gates to the vehicular access shall be set back and shall not open
over the highway.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any
subsequent re-enactment or revocation thereof) the accommodation
hereby approved shall only be used by students or those provided with
supported living accommodation by the YMCA and for no other residential
use without the prior consent of the City Council as Local Planning
Authority

92. Application for Development: Tennis Courts, Boultham Park, Boultham Park

Road, Lincoln

13



(Councillors C Burke and Strengiel returned to the room to take their seats for the
remainder of the meeting.)

The Planning Manager:

a.

described the location of the proposed development relating to Boultham
Park Tennis Courts, situated to the north of the Bowling Green and
Pavilion, to the rear of residential properties along Western Avenue, and to
the west the residential development known as Home Green, which was
nearing completion

advised that planning permission was sought for the erection of a 3 metre
high fence and gates to replace existing fencing

highlighted that the application site fell within the boundary of Boultham
Park which was a Grade Il Listed Historic Park and Garden and the
Witham Valley Green Wedge

advised that this planning application was brought to Committee, the
applicant being the City of Lincoln Council

provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP22 Green Wedges

Policy LP25 The Historic Environment

National Planning Policy Framework

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the
application to consider whether the proposal was in accordance with the
provisions of Policy LP22 'Green Wedges' and Policy LP25 'Historic
Environment' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) and relevant
guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

concluded that the proposed development would preserve the character
and appearance of Boultham Park and the function and aims of the
Witham Valley Green Wedge, in accordance with the provisions of Policy
LP22 'Green Wedges' and LP25 'Historic Environment' of the Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) and relevant guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions.

Standard Conditions

01)

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
14



93.

94.

1990.

02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of
this consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in
accordance with the drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the
approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the
application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the
approved plans.

Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works
None.

Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented
None.

Conditions to be adhered to at all times
None.

Table A

The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted
drawings identified below:

Drawing No. | Version Drawing Type Date Received
2700/07/01 Site plans 11th February 2019
2700/07/02 Plans - Proposed 11th February 2019

Exclusion of Press and Public

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item(s) of business because it was likely that if
members of the public were present there would be a disclosure to them of
‘exempt information’ as defined by Section 1001 and Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972.

Part B Report: Exempt Information

The Planning Manager:
a. presented a report to bring to Committee’s attention a breach of planning
regulations and to recommend a course of action for dealing with the
breach

b. gave further details within the report covering the background and options
available

c. recommended a suggested course of action as detailed within the report.

15



Members discussed the content of the report in further detail, asked questions
and received relevant responses from officers thereon.

RESOLVED that the course of action recommended at paragraphs 8.1 of the
report be approved.

16



[tem No. 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE 29 MAY 2019
SUBJECT: WORK TO TREES IN CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP
DIRECTORATE: COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

REPORT AUTHOR:  STEVE BIRD — ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, COMMUNITIES AND

STREET SCENE

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Purpose of Report

To advise Members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City Council
ownership, and to seek consent to progress the works identified.

This list does not represent all the work undertaken to Council trees. It is all the
instances where a tree is either identified for removal, or where a tree enjoys some
element of protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent is
required.

Background

In accordance with policy, Committee’s views are sought in respect of proposed
works to trees in City Council ownership, see Appendix A.

The responsibility for the management of any given tree is determined by the
ownership responsibilities of the land on which it stands. Trees within this schedule
are therefore on land owned by the Council, with management responsibilities
distributed according to the purpose of the land. However, it may also include trees
that stand on land for which the council has management responsibilities under a
formal agreement but is not the owner.

Tree Assessment

All cases are brought to this committee only after careful consideration and
assessment by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer (together with independent
advice where considered appropriate).

All relevant Ward Councillors are notified of the proposed works for their respective
wards prior to the submission of this report.

Although the Council strives to replace any tree that has to be removed, in some
instances it is not possible or desirable to replant a tree in either the exact location
or of the same species. In these cases a replacement of an appropriate species is
scheduled to be planted in an alternative appropriate location. This is usually in the
general locality where this is practical, but where this is not practical, an alternative
location elsewhere in the city may be selected. Tree planting is normally scheduled
for the winter months following the removal.

17




4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

Consultation and Communication

All ward Councillors are informed of proposed works on this schedule, which are
within their respective ward boundaries.

The relevant portfolio holders are advised in advance in all instances where, in the
judgement of officers, the matters arising within the report are likely to be sensitive
or contentious.

Strategic Priorities

Let's Enhance our Remarkable Place

The Council acknowledges the importance of trees and tree planting to the
environment. Replacement trees are routinely scheduled wherever a tree has to be
removed, in-line with City Council policy.

Organisational Impacts

Finance (including whole life costs where applicable)

Finance

The costs of any tree works arising from this report will be borne by the existing
budgets. There are no other financial implications, capital or revenue, unless stated
otherwise in the works schedule.

i) Staffing N/A
iif) Property/Land/ Accommodation Implications ~ N/A

iv) Procurement

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the City Council’s grounds
maintenance contractor. The Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance contract
ends August 2020. The staff are all suitably trained, qualified, and experienced
Legal Implications including Procurement Rules

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the Council’'s grounds
maintenance contractor. The contractor was appointed after an extensive
competitive tendering exercise. The contract for this work was let in April 2006. The
Council is compliant with all TPO and Conservation area legislative requirements.
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights

There are no negative implications.

Risk Implications

The work identified on the attached schedule represents the Arboricultural Officer’s

18



advice to the Council relevant to the specific situation identified. This is a balance
of assessment pertaining to the health of the tree, its environment, and any legal or
health and safety concerns. In all instances the protection of the public is taken as
paramount. Deviation from the recommendations for any particular situation may
carry ramifications. These can be outlined by the Arboricultural Officer pertinent to
any specific case.

7.2 Where appropriate, the recommended actions within the schedule have been
subject to a formal risk assessment. Failure to act on the recommendations of the
Arboricultural Officer could leave the City Council open to allegations that it has not
acted responsibly in the discharge of its responsibilities.

8. Recommendation

8.1 That the works set out in the attached schedules be approved

Is this a key decision? No

Do the exempt information No
categories apply?

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny No
Procedure Rules (call-in and

urgency) apply?

How many appendices does 1
the report contain?

List of Background Papers: None

Lead Officer: Mr S. Bird, g
Assistant Director (Communities & Street Scene)

Telephone 873421

19



NOTIFICATION OF INTENDED WORK TO TREES AND HEDGES

RELEVANT TO THEIR CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP STATUS.

SCHEDULE No 5/ SCHEDULE DATE: 29/05/19

[tem
No

Status

e.g.
CAC

Specific
Location

Tree Species
and description
/| reasons for
work / Ward.

Recommendation

CAC

Land adjacent to
Crown House,
Flaxengate.

Abbey Ward
5 Limes.

Prune to reduce
crowns to allow
statutory highway
clearance and
clearance to property.

Approve.

CAC

High Street, outside
House of Fraser.

Abbey Ward /
Carholme Ward

Notification of
proposed works to fell
1 dead Maple located
on the boundary
between Abbey and
Carholme Wards.

Approve and replant with a
Maple in a suitable
location.

CAC

Arboretum, adjacent
to the central steps

of the raised terrace.

Abbey Ward
1 Lime.

Retrospective consent
to fell.

The tree had
extensive decay at the
base and was
unstable.

Approve and replant with a
Lime.

N/A

Rear garden of 41
Stainton Gardens

Castle Ward

1 Ash.

Fell, the tree has
decay in the main
stem and is dying.

Approve and replant with a
Mountain Ash in a suitable
location.

N/A

Garden of 3 Retief
View.

Castle Ward

1 Rowan.

Fell, the tree is in
decline.

Approve and replant with a
Rowan in a suitable
location.

20




N/A

Front of 71 Geneva
Avenue.

Glebe Ward

1 Whitebeam
Fell, the tree has
decay of the main
trunk.

Approve and replant with a
Whitebeam in a suitable
location.

TPO

Birchwood Avenue
tree belt to rear of 9
Finningley Road

Hartsholme Ward
4 Birch.

Fell the trees are
dead/dying

Approve and replant with 4
Birches in a suitable
location.

TPO

Link path to rear of
18 Wigsley Close

Hartsholme Ward

1 Oak.

Remove deadwood
and reduce the crown
overhanging the
property by 1.5
metres.

Approve

TPO

Land to rear of 39
Lindholme Road

Hartsholme Ward

4 Oaks

Remove deadwood,
Reduce crowns
overhanging property
by approximately 1.5
metres

1 Alder
Coppice a
regenerated stump.

Approve

10

N/A

Garden of 11
Reynolds Drive.

Moorland Ward

1 Cherry.

Fell, there is decay in
the main stem.

Approve and replant with a
Cherry in a suitable
location.

11

N/A

Public Open Space
adjacent to Lenton
Green / Barkston
Gardens

Minster Ward
Retrospective consent
to fell 1 Horse
Chestnut due to
structural crown failure
on 4/05/19 requiring
immediate works to
prevent harm to
persons / property.

Approve and replant with a
Horse Chestnut.

21




This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 4a

Application Number: | 2019/0079/FUL

Site Address: 8 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 29th March 2019

Agent Name: Yorke Architecture

Applicant Name: Mr Khan

Proposal: Change of use to 7 bed House in Multiple Occupation (HMO)
(Sui Generis) (Revised Description).

Background - Site Location and Description

The application property is 8 Top Lodge Close, a two storey detached dwelling located
within a cul-de-sac with eight other properties accessed from Doddington Road to the
south, close to the junction with Whisby Road. Top Lodge Close is not public highway and
is privately owned and maintained. The property has a driveway to the front and a large
garden to the side and rear, bounded by approximately 1.8m high fencing. To the east of
the site is 9 Top Lodge Close with 6 and 7 Top Lodge Close to the west. To the north are
properties on Swaythling Close.

The application is for the change of use from a dwellinghouse (Class C3) to a seven bed
House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Sui Generis). The six bedroom property is currently
vacant. The application proposes to maintain the four bedrooms on the first floor, two on
the second floor (within the roof) and create a further bedroom as part of a self-contained
unit within the double garage. Works to create this unit have already commenced involving
the installation of internal stud walls and the partial bricking up of the garage door
openings, creating window openings. The occupants in the main house would have access
to a lounge, kitchen/diner, snug and bathrooms.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 26th February 2019, also visiting the neighbouring property of 9 Top Lodge
Close.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP9 Health and Wellbeing
e Policy LP10 Meeting Accommodation Needs
e Policy LP26 Design and Amenity Standards
e Policy LP37 Sub-division and multi-occupation of dwellings within Lincoln
e National Planning Policy Framework
Issues

¢ Use and policy context
e Lack of demand for the dwellinghouse use

23



HMO concentration
Parking and effect on the ame

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community

Involvement, adopted May 2014.

Statutory Consultation Responses

nities of the wider area
External communal space, cycle and bin storage

Consultee

Comment

Highways & Planning

Comments Received

Cadent Gas Ltd

Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name

Address

Mr David Spraggins

7 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Mr David Conroy-Lewis

3 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Miss Nicola Sykes

14 Swaythling Close
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 3DD

Elizabeth Young

1 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Mr Mike Maloney

4 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
LN6 3JA

Mrs Julie McHardy

13 Swaythling Close
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 3DD

24




Andrew Young 1 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Mr Philip Thompson 12 Swaythling Close
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 3DD

Mrs Judith Davids 5 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Mr Richard Sargent 9 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
LN63JA

Mr Daniel Gardner 2 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Mr Sammy Liu 6 Top Lodge Close
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN6 3JA

Consideration

Letters of objection have been received from all of the neighbouring properties on Top
Lodge Close; 1 to 7 and 9. Objections have also been received from 12 and 14 Swaythling
Close. The areas of concern relate to the effect on the family character of the close, noise
and disturbance as well as overlooking and loss of privacy, due to increased usage of the
property and bedrooms. The objectors also consider that the proposal will lead to an
increased volume of traffic and visitors. They state that there is insufficient parking; the
drive can only accommodate a maximum of four cars, and the additional capacity of the
double garage has been lost due to the conversion. This will lead to an increase in
on-street parking on the narrow road and, given the location on a bend, will cause a
hazard and safety issues. There is specific concern raised by the occupant of 9 Top Lodge
Close as there is no boundary between his own driveway and that of the application

property.

There is a general comment of support from many of the objectors to this type of
accommodation but they consider that this is the wrong location, given there are no local
amenities and facilities. Most objectors also note that if the HMO use was authorised, this
could then be taken up by any company/owner.

A number of the representations have raised objection on the grounds of the impact on

house prices, the credibility of the operator and that the multi-occupancy and the running
of a business are in contravention of the deeds. These are not material planning

25




considerations that can be taken into account. Similarly, the specific nature of the
occupancy suggested by the application and the neighbour’s concerns associated with this
cannot be taken into account, although this is discussed in more detail below.

Use and Policy Context

The ‘Supporting Statement’ advises that the use of the property would be for adult
disabled persons who wish to work towards living independent lives, in a supported living
environment. The property would offer two stages of accommodation prior to clients being
able to function fully independently in the wider community. Six occupants would be in
receipt of moderate support within the main house, with the seventh occupying the
self-contained unit within the garage and receive only minor support. The agent has
advised that the support would be in the form of one staff member at a time, visiting for
approximately 2 hours per day, with additional on call support available 24/7 as required.

There was some discussion with the agent at the outset of the application regarding the
use class that this type of operation would fall within. While there is to be an element of
care provided it was agreed that this would not be at a level that would constitute a
Residential Institution (C2). The application would therefore be considered as a HMO.

It should also be noted that officers have to consider the use as a HMO, and not the
specific operator. The current applicant could choose not to implement the permission,
which could then in turn be implemented by different owner, a concern raised by objectors.

The proposal for the HMO use will therefore be considered against the requirements of
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) Policy LP37, which advises that the changes of
use to houses in multi-occupation will be supported where:

e the existing dwelling is capable of conversion without causing harm to the amenities
of future occupants, neighbours and the wider area;

e it can be demonstrated that there is an established lack of demand for the single
family use of the property;

e the development will not lead to or increase an existing over-concentration of such
uses in the area; and

e adequate provision is made for external communal areas, bin storage and collection
and on-site parking and cycle storage. On-site parking and cycle storage may not
be necessary if it can be demonstrated that the site is sustainably located on a
regular bus route or within walking distance of the City Centre.

The application property is subject to the city wide Article 4 Direction. From the 1st March
2016 the Article 4 removed permitted development comprising the change of use from a
use falling within Class C3 (dwellinghouses) to a use falling within Class C4 (houses in
multiple occupation occupied by between three to six occupants). While the Article 4 does
not apply to the Sui Generis HMO as proposed (having more than six occupants), the
associated Houses in Multiple Occupation Supplementary Planning Document Approved
Draft (SPD) provides criteria for determining planning applications for the development of
HMOs, which are still relevant to this type of HMO.

The SPD outlines the criteria that will be used to determine planning applications for the
development of HMOs in the city. The purpose of this, and the Article 4 direction, is not to
restrict the supply of HMOs, rather they are intended to manage their future development.
This should ensure such developments will not lead to or increase an existing over

26



concentration of HMOs, which are considered harmful to local communities, or result in the
loss of properties from the market where there is a demand for their use as a
dwellinghouse.

Paragraph 8 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) outlines the three
overarching objectives of sustainable development and, as part of the social objective, it
should be ensured that there is a sufficient number and range of homes that meet the
needs of present and future generations.

Lack of Demand for the Dwellinghouse Use

Policy LP37 and the SPD state that applications should demonstrate that there is an
established lack of demand for the single family use of the property. The SPD specifically
requires that evidence that the property has been openly marketed at a reasonable
purchase or rental price for a period of at least six months should be submitted, verified by
a suitable person in a relevant profession, such as an estate agent. This should ideally
also include information of comparable properties for sale/recently sold in the area.

This policy approach has been supported by the Planning Inspectorate, with appeals
dismissed where applications have failed to meet this requirement.

No such evidence was submitted as part of the application and officers accordingly
requested this during the process. The agent has submitted a revised ‘Supporting
Statement’ although this provides no information of the marketing history of the property or
evidence of the lack of demand. Instead the statement emphasises the demand for the
specific supported living use proposed, that the nature of the use will limit the potential
impact on neighbours and also limit the number of cars as none of the residents will be
likely to drive. The statement also references both local and national policy, which
encourages local planning authorities to consider the potential for achieving positive
mental health outcomes and create balanced and inclusive communities.

Paragraph 91 of the NPPF promotes social inclusivity and social interaction, echoed by
CLLP Policy LP10 which aims to achieve balanced and mixed communities. Policy LP9
states that the potential for achieving positive mental health outcomes will be taken into
account when considering all development proposals. In line with these policies officers
are fully supportive in principle of the provision of this type of accommodation within the
city, however, such proposals also need to meet the requirements of other policies, in this
case LP37 and the SPD.

The other aspects of this policy and the SPD will be considered later within the report, but
in terms of demand for the property as a family dwelling, the application does not provide
any evidence of marketing and officers cannot therefore conclude that there is a lack of
demand. This would be contrary to Policy LP37 and the SPD. While there is the potential
for a positive mental health outcome to be achieved (assuming that the current applicant
operates the specific use) it is not considered that this is sufficient to outweigh this policy
objection. Officers have to consider the acceptability of the HMO use and not the operator,
and would accordingly recommend to members that planning permission be refused on
these grounds.

HMQO Concentration

The SPD requires that the concentration of HMOs should not be over a 10% maximum

27



within a defined 100 metre radius. A high concentration or percentage of HMOs can lead
to an imbalance in the community. There is also a requirement that the proposal should
not result in a smaller concentration, specifically from three adjacent HMOs.

In this instance the threshold is not exceeded, indeed there are no other HMOs known to
the council within the radius area. Officers are satisfied that the principle of allowing a
HMO use would therefore not have an unduly harmful impact on the overall balance of the
community.

Parking and Effect on the Amenities of the Wider Area

During the process of the application the Lincolnshire County Council as Local Highway
Authority (HA) requested additional information regarding vehicle numbers and parking
arrangements.

The agent advised that none of the residents will be likely to drive due to the nature of their
needs, so the provision of parking on site would be limited to visiting staff and as such
would be lower than one would expect from a single family occupying a house of this size.
There would be one member of staff at a time, using only one parking space, although the
driveway is large enough for three to four cars.

The HA has considered this additional information and is satisfied that the proposal would
not cause issues on the highway. The HA consider that vehicle movements associated
with the development proposal will be reduced from that of a 6 bedroom family occupied
dwelling as existing, although there is also no highway safety concerns for a more generic
HMO use at this location. Accordingly the HA do not wish to restrict the grant of planning
permission.

While this is the position of the HA from a highway safety point of view, officers have
concerns regarding the potential for increased vehicles and on-street parking. The agent
has advised that none of the residents are likely to drive, however, it is the HMO use that
must be considered as opposed to the operator. The seven bedroom property could
therefore be occupied by seven residents, each with a car. The driveway would not be
able to accommodate this number of cars resulting in on-street parking. Officers would
concur with the objections from neighbours in this respect, and consider that the potential
for on-street parking would have significant issues on this small cul-de-sac resulting in a
harmful effect on the residential amenities of neighbouring properties. This would be
contrary to CLLP Policy LP26 and officers would recommend refusal of the application on
these grounds.

In terms of the more general impact on neighbouring properties, objectors have raised
concern regarding noise and disturbance, overlooking and loss of privacy.

With regard to noise and disturbance, it is again the HMO use that should be considered
and not the specific operator. The City Council’s Pollution Control Officer has advised that
there is no objection to the HMO use in respect of noise, which is consistent with the
officer’'s advice on other HMOs within the city.

Officers also have no objection regarding overlooking from existing bedroom windows, as
these remain as bedrooms and do not therefore result in a new relationship. There is,
however, a level of overlooking created from the conversion of the garage, towards the
driveway and front aspect of the neighbouring 9 Top Lodge Close. While this is an issue it

28



could be mitigated with a condition to require a fence to the boundary, and therefore
officers would not recommend that this be additional grounds for refusal.

There is no objection from officers to the level of accommodation for future occupants or
the impact on visual amenity, as the external works to the convert the garage are minor.
Some objectors have noted that there is no access to local facilities for future occupants.
However, Policy LP37 only requires HMOs to be sustainably located on a regular bus
route or within walking distance of the city centre where there is no on-site parking. The
application property does provide on-site parking, albeit limited, and is located on a bus
route and accordingly officers would not raise objection to the application on these
grounds.

External Communal Space, Cycle and Bin Storage

There is private garden to the rear of the property. There is no indication that an area for
cycle or bin storage is provided within this, however, it is reasonable to assume that these
could be accommodated here.

Conclusion

In accordance with CLLP Policies LP9 and LP10 officers are fully supportive in principle of
the provision of the type of accommodation that is suggested by the application, however,
it is the HMO use and not the specific operator that has been considered. The potential for
mental health benefits would not therefore outweigh the requirement for the HMO proposal
to meet Policy LP37 and the SPD. These both require that applications should
demonstrate that there is an established lack of demand for the use of the property as a
family dwellinghouse. The application has failed to provide such evidence and officers
recommend refusal on these grounds.

Similarly, while the application states that there would be limited vehicle ownership
associated with specific use, officers have to consider the potential for a seven bedroom
HMO to be occupied by seven occupants, each with their own car. There is no objection
from the Lincolnshire County Council as Local Highway Authority in terms of highway
safety although officers consider that the potential for increased vehicle numbers and the
insufficient parking provision within the application site would result in on-street parking,
which would in turn cause harm to the amenities of local residents. Officers would
recommend that the application is also refused on these grounds.

Notwithstanding the impact on neighbouring properties through increased on-street
parking it is not considered that the principle of the HMO use would result in undue harm
to neighbouring occupants or the visual amenity of the wider area. The application would
not result in an over concentration of HMOs within the area. The application site also has
the potential to provide adequate provision for external communal areas for amenity, cycle
storage and bin storage.

Officers would therefore recommend refusal of the application on the grounds of lack of
evidence of the demand for the property as a family dwelling and the impact on
neighbouring occupants as a result of the potential for on-street parking, contrary to CLLP
Policies LP26 and LP37, the SPD and the NPPF.

29



Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is refused for the following reasons:

1. The application fails to demonstrate there is an established lack of demand for the
single family use of the application property thereby discouraging owner occupation
by families, contrary to Policy LP37 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan, the
Houses in Multiple Occupation Supplementary Planning Document Approved Draft
and paragraph 8 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

2. The proposed seven bedroom HMO could be occupied by seven individuals, each
with a car. The driveway within the application site could not accommodate that
level of parking which would result in on-street parking. This would have a
significant impact on the small cul-de-sac, causing harm to the residential amenities
which the occupiers of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to enjoy,
contrary to Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan.

30



nd photos

8 Top Lodge Close: plans a

31



™) Proposed Second Floor Plan

, Proposed First Floor Plan

32



Al

UOYDAS|3 3pi§ pPasodold

00131 9o0s

uoyoA3|3 api§ pasodoly

el

UoIDAS3 JDaY pasodold

0oLt Fees 7

UOIDASR juoi4 pasodoid &

33



Front elevation and drive

Front elevation and garden to side

34



Application property and 9 Top Lodge Close to the right

“ 4] cAl. _
- e e z
—— »I'?'i e T KT l, dl(] : =
A T
’ ,‘Lji I T t

Garden and rear boundary with Swaythling Close properties

35



This page is intentionally blank.



8 Top Lodge Close: consultation response

Customer Details
Name: Mr Mike Maloney
Address: 4 Top Lodge Close Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:This close can't accommodate this proposed change of use, we are a family oriented
Close of nine houses. The families vary from the old to the young including children, Allowing this
to proceed in this area will not help anybody. The proposed dwelling was build to house a family,
the reason people moved here was because its a close with a families (A FEELING OF SAFETY),
allowing this change off use is not right for this small close. With 7 Bedrooms comes vehicles, you
can;t park more then 4 cars without going onto the road, its a corner plot so parking on the bends
will cause a issue for the other 7 Houses leaving and entering. There a numerous issues we could
list from looking at the proposed plans. Also surly you must take into account house values, sale
ability of our homes in the future if this is granted. | welcome your response, and would also like to
point out that the application when in on the 31/01/2019, the client has already started the
changes internally this is not helping matters, (i understand its add hie own risk) it just makes it
look like theres no point in contact you as its going to happen anyway. | await your response by
return , as a side note the residents are holding a meeting on the 14/2/2019 7pm at number 9.
please feel free to contact me if you would like to attend.

37



Customer Details
Name: Mr Philip Thompson
Address: 12 Swaythling Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LN6 3DD

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:1. My property joins No 8 Top Lodge Close where the side of my property joins the rear
of No. 8.

2. The original application requested the that the property be changed from a Dwelling-house (C3)
to Residential Institution (C2). Where 7 people receiving care, e.g. Supported Housing Scheme
such as those with learning disabilities or mental problems. | am informed by Planning Officer
Marie Smyth that this has been revised to a House of Multiple Occupancy (HMO).

3. | see several problems with this proposal.

a. Car parking will be an issue. The property can support 4 cars closely parked. There will be no
internal garage so any vehicles coming onto the property will only be able to use this space. There
is very little room for "off road" parking as the property is on a bend and will restrict drivers coming

off Doddington Road.

b. The rear of the property is only 19.5 metres from a large lake. It would be very easy for a person
who is mentally impaired to gain access to the lake and cause injury or even death to themselves..

38



Customer Details
MName: Mr David Spraggins
Address: 7 Top Lodge Close Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:l QBJECT to this application at 8 Top Lodge Close LNG 3JA for the following reasons:

| feel that this type of service that is being applied for is completely wrong for the area; the location
is out of the way from local amenities with little public transport to get to and from places.

There will be insufficient parking for such a dwelling. The applicant has already started developing
the site and has removed the double garage facility for cars, which alone will impact on parking,
due to them reducing the car parking at the premises.

The road is only wide enough for a car at a time, s0 other cars visiting, or parking, will have to park
on the footpath illegally, and there is very limited space for vehicles to tum.

The house was originally designed for 6 bedrooms only, but the submitted plans show an annex to
include a 7th bedroom.

There is a disabled man living in the close next to the property in guestion and this will impact on
his ability to move freely if cars are parked illegally.

There is a health and safety issue here, as Doddington Road is very busy and at times fast
moving, which is a risk for vulnerable people.

| have concems for the very small children within the Close due to the increased traffic that would

be a result of the application, and also their health and safety in respect of the potential tenants
who would be living there unsupervised.

This type of development contravenes the deeds policy, which states that there can be no
business use at the premises.

39



Customer Details
Name: Mr Sammy Liu
Address: 6 Top Lodge Close Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:| would like to object to the proposed development of number 8 Top lodge Close. An
objection without prejudice.

The primary factor in the our objection is the added volume of traffic in which the proposed change
of use will bring to the unadopted road.

The revised changes from the original application requested the that the property be changed from
a Dwelling-house to Residential Institution will significantly increase the volume of traffic entering
and parking at the close. The plot was originally designed for the support of a maximum of 4 family
vehicles and is being converted to increase the number of beds but removing spaces for vehicles
to park. The close has limited areas to park and with the expected increase in vehicles | worry
about the safety of my young children who often playing the private road. In addition the likelihood
of emergency vehicles needing to access the close will be restricted should vehicles park
alongside the kerb.

Thankyou for your time

40



Mrs Judith Davids 5 Top Lodge Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 3JA (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Sat 16 Feb 2019

| object to this request for change of use of 8 Top Lodge Close from a Dwelling-house (C3) to an HMO, on the grounds that the Close cannot
accommodate the additional traffic, parking and visitors that this will naturally attract. There is also a covenant within the deeds of all residents’
properties forbidding the running of any business within the Close.

The stated intention is for the house is to be run as a business by 28A Supported Living Limited for the supported housing of adults with learning and
mental disabilities.

My concern is that if HMO status is granted, this will stay with the property no matter what the primary use, or who the occupants are, Whereas the
initial stated cause is to support the vulnerable and to help them integrate back into the community, once the property has HMO status the owner of the
property could quite easily decide that it would be more profitable to run, or sell the house on, as a straight HMO without the overheads of the care
element.

Top Lodge Close is a small, close community of 9 residential, 5 & 6 bedroom, dwellings. When built the need for parking was underestimated. Each
house has space for up to 4 cars. This has proven to be an inadequate provision where the house is fully occupied and there are grown up children, and
the Close has previously suffered from families struggling to fit their cars in along the sides of what is a narrow road. This situation also caused some
friction in the past on the occasions when people had guests or were entertaining, with cars parking in other people's drives or lawns, and a cluster of
cars blocking the entrance to the Close, reducing this to one lane. This last represents a very real risk to cars turning into the Close from Doddington
Road and coming bumper to bumper with another car trying to exit. Obviously to date this has happened on an occasional, rather than a regular basis,
however with the creation of an HMQ in the close this will become a daily occurrence.

Thought also needs to be given as to how large vehicles will be able to manoeuvre. The entrance to the Close was obviously left wide to allow for safe
access to and exit from, what is a very busy road. After the entrance the road is narrower and there is no place to turn around, and currently the refuse
vehicles and any larger delivery vans are obliged to reverse back into the Close. Number 8 is on the bend near the entrance to the Close, if this area
becomes congested this will prevent larger vehicles (including emergency vehicles) from gaining access.

| would ask that you give due consideration to the impact on the current residents in what is currently a close community if Number 8 is to become an
HMO, and importantly to the parking congestion that will arise, together with the associated risks described above. Top Lodge Close does not have the

infrastructure to support an HMO!

(A minor paint but under the heading "Biodiversity and Geological Conservation” in the application form - Lodge Lake which is within 19.5 metres of the
house is a place of Special Scientific Interest.)

41



Mr Richard Sargent 9 Top Lodge Close Lincoln LN63JA (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 18 Feb 2019

| wish to start by stating that i strongly object to this application. | have been a resident of Top Lodge Close since 2016 when i made this my forever
home. | my self am also a vulnerable adult who lives independently in the community. This application i feel now threatens my feeling of security in this
close residential street.

Reading the statement made by the applicant i wish to touch on a few subjects raised. | do not challenge that there is a need for these centres in the
community. | love the concept of helping create independence in vulnerable adults. However they now risk my own independence and confidence in the
community. The reason being that we have an open plan driveway and also the new introduction of windows under Permitted Development. | feel that
this proposes a risk to my privacy and security. The windows now allows for occupants, the ability to study the comings and goings of my property.
Although it is hypothetical that someone could take advantage of this, it still does not reassure my mental health. | would like the planning to not only
consider the benefits of the applicants but also take into consideration the potential health risks it now could impose on my self as a direct neighbour.

| have made a large financial investment in making this home fully accessible to my self. | was careful in my planing in selecting a property that had very
strict covenants to know i would be safe in the future. This application violates 2 restricted convenience in our deeds with the possibility of a third if
granted permission. If this application was to be granted i would be left with no possibility to sell and move if | became unwell due to stress.

As they are applying for HMO status my fear is that the company will keep changing their mind on who they house. They have a history within their
organisation of working with a wide variety of individuals. | feel their statement that their intended clients would not require parking due to there type of
disability should not be taking into consideration.

All 6 bedroom properties on the estate where given a minimum of 2 garages to be able to cope with the traffic intended with a one family unit dwelling.
Subsequently the applicant has chosen to remove the double garage in order to house a 7th person and company with HMO guidelines of a groundfloor
accessible accommodation. The driveway at a push would house 4 cars but this would also lead to blocking the main door and not having sufficient
space for a clear fire escape route. Due to the remove of the double garage the property has now lost the use of a further two parking spaces. Our
garages where constructed large enough that they could accommodate two modern day vehicles comfortably. So not only have they increased the
amount of people in the property they have also decreased the amount of parking spaces.

This would result in them needing to park on the private road. The bend access to the property is already limited and cars would be forced to park on
this. It would lead to a potential obstruction for required emergence service vehicles and with the potential care needs of the individuals in this property
it would have more of a precedent to make sure this wasn't an issue. Also it would cause direct issues to my self in entering and exiting my own personal
driveway safely.

The access road as mentioned above is a private road which all residents have a responsibility towards. It states in the deeds that until the highway
agency was to adopt the road that we the residents would be responsible for the upkeep. As to the date of me writing the road has still not been
adopted by the highways agency and this was confirmed over the phone to me. In the deeds it mentions fair usage for access to and from our
properties. The added traffic of care workers, visitors and residents | feel does not fall under fair usage, as the intention for the property was for one
family unit. The level of traffic would be greater, which ultimately would effect the wear on the road meaning it would deteriorate quicker. Ultimately it
would be the other residents who would have to take the hit with the added cost. This would not be fair due to the fact this establishment would be
making money out of the business and ultimately this would be at the rest of the residents expense.

| would welcome a site visit from your self so you could get a better understanding of the concerns | have raised. Please feel free to use my contact

details above to arrange a convent time for us both. As | am realistically the only direct neighbour of this property | feel it would be more appropriate to
meet together.

42



From: dan gardnerF
Sent: 27 February -

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: Objection to 8, Top Lodge Close, Lincoln development

Good moming.

Please see below my objection to the proposals at 8 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln. | have tried to submit
online but it did not seem to work. | am Daniel Gardner - 2 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln - | am aware my
comments will be made public.

| object to this request for the change of use of 8 Top Lodge Close from a Dwelling-house (C3) to an
HMO for the following reasons;

Firstly we have recently bought our property on the close and paid a lot of attention to the terms of the
deeds to the property and the surrounding area. It clearly states in the deeds that each dwelling is for
one family unit and cannot be occupied by multiple occupancy. It also states that businesses cannot
be run from the property and commercial vehicles cannot parked at the properties. This proposal,
which has clearly started to be developed prior to the outcome of the application is in breach of these
deeds.

This area consists of large, detached properties which are occupied by family units. This was the
number one reason for us purchasing in the area as that gave us the safety and security with raising a
family in mind. Had HMOs been allowed on the close or if there were any already in existence, we
would not have purchased the property.

There is clear and direct evidence in others parts of the city (West End for example) that HMOs lead to
a rise in noise complaints and anti-social behaviour. This will have a direct impact on us, our
neighbours and our house prices.

| also note the applicant has stated that he does not anticipate any noise issues and or anti-social
behaviour from the property. This is a generic comment, which lacks evidence to corroborate such a
claim. The very fact that there is a 24 hour helpline for the residents suggests that there will be
issues.

Once an HMO status is granted it stays with the property, not the owner. Whilst the current plan is to
house young adults with learning difficulties this could be open to future abuse and could be used to
house a wide range of residents with varying issues which could have a large impact on the area and
already established community. The owner is unlikely to be concerned about this as they will only
have a financial incentive when either renting or selling the property. This could include substance
abusers to people on probation with an extensive history of offending. This has a well documented link
to serious acquisitive crime and anti-social behaviour.

43



My pariner and | currently work iong and anti social hours which include night shifts. This area
currently benefits from a quiet and peaceful environment and this is owing to the majority of the
resident working during the day. This allows us to sleep during the day following night shifts. We fear
by introducing a HMO into the close is out of keeping with the area and will have a clear impact its
quiet nature. This will have a direct impact on us and our decision to buy in this area,

Parking has already been mentioned previously by neighbours but we would also like to highlight an
increase in vehicles in the close will have a direct impact on both emergency vehicle access and
wheelchair/pushchair access for all current residents.

All of the residents in the close currently own their properties and take pride in its appearance and
upkeep. We fear that the transient population of an HMO will not share our enthusiasm and willingness
to maintain their property to the same standard. This will have an impact on the environment and
enjoyment of the area.

This proposal should be rejected.

Kind regards,
Daniel Gardner

2, Top Lodge Close, Lincoln

Mrs Julie McHardy 13 Swaythling Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 3DD (Objects)

Comment submitted date: Tue 19 Feb 2019

| object to the application for change of use from (C3) Dwelling House to Sui Generis with an element of care revised from (C2) Residential Institute at
the address 8 Top Lodge Close

We are a neighboring property and are adjoined by a rear boundary fence. My objections are base on the following criteria

a. Lack of Privacy
"where two habitable rooms face each other such that direct overlooking is physically possible the windows should be 22 metres apart, this is required to
achieve a degree of privacy within conventional two storey accommodation, habitable rooms include living and bedrooms, studies and kitchens”

my properties privacy was initially comprised with the original development of Top Lodge Close, the overbearing scale and dominating effect of Number
8 had an immediate impact on our property, it also appears that the building and planning regulators were not looking after our best interests as
homeowners because measurements taken recently of 19.25 metre appear to be below the minimum standard necessary to protect our privacy.

My current objection is impounded by the fact that the current family bedrooms will become a hostel room/bedsit, with all the occupiers personal
possessions kept within this private space, the room will be utilised more frequently and for longer periods of time in the day which means our privacy

will be compromised even further,

b. Overlooking
Building Regulations 1984 " a habitable room window of a building on an allotment must not provide a direct line of sight into a habitable room or onto a

secluded private open space of an existing dwelling on an adjoining allotment.

Our garden is completely overlooked by number 8 and offers no secluded areas, this will be further impacted by the change of use with occupiers of the
rear rooms on the 1st floor having an unhindered view into our rear garden.

Human Rights Act - Protocol 1 - Article 1
"The protection of property gives every person the right to peaceful enjoyment of their possessions" which includes their home and land.

| would like to extend an invitation to the council for a representative from the planning committee to meet at my property to illustrate my objections.
Conclusion
In the supporting statement provided they state the application has arisen due to a need for supported living within the region and end by stating the

need clearly outweighs the harm” If there is a potential for harm as quoted by the applicant then this outweighs the need and this application therefore
should be denied without delay

44



Customer Details
Name: Miss Nicola Sykes
Address: 14 Swaythling Close LINCOLN

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:We live adjacent to the proposed development and are writing to ask that you refuse the
application.

Firstly the proposed development is in a small close, where children play freely in the street as
there is no through road. The development will increase the number of residential cars and visitors
to the business, which will lead to parking in the street and invariably overflowing into swaythling.
This will not only cause traffic/access issues, but also a saftey hazard.

Doddington road is already congested without the increase traffic to a business in the close.

8 Top Lodge overlooks our garden and this will have an impact on our privacy in the garden and
house. With the potential of several residents and visitors this will have an impact on the noise in
the close.

There are a number of children who use both closes to play in not only will the additional traffic

become a saftey hazard, but also the volume of residents and different visitors visiting the
development also increases safeguarding issues in a quiet residential close.

45



Customer Details
MName: Mr David Conroy-Lewis
Address: 3, Top Lodge Close Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:| object to the planning application for the change of use of 8 Top Lodge Close to an
HMO, on the grounds that:

a) we hought the house because it was on a quiet close with family occupation of the properties
and there has been a pleasant community atmosphere here for the last 7 years. One of the
appealing parts of the close was that the property deeds of all residents limit the occupation of the
properties to family units and prohibit the running of any business within the close. This has been
the case to date and | find the proposed development goes against the deeds and the community
spirit.

) the proposed development is at the entrance to the close and will inevitably bring with it
additional traffic and parking for visitors and new occupiers of the property. Access to the
remaining houses will be limited, or blocked, as the road is namow and as the garage has been
converted to accommaodation any additional vehicles will be parked on the road as the parking
space for the house in limited to three or four cars. There is insufficient parking space for
additional vehicles and parking on the limited road area will cause a hazard to residents from
vehicles entering and leaving the close around a tight namow bend which has limited visibility even
when clear. Access for delivery vehicles and any emergency vehicles will be limited by parking.
Already thre refuse collection lorry has to reverse down the single track part of the close to collect
the recycling and refuse. The parking will limit the turning area provided on the made up part of the
road and access to the remaining properies will be adversely impacted. Parking on the
pavements will cause blocking of the passage of pedestrians. My mother in law lives with us and
has limited mobility relying on the use of 2 mobility scooter to get out to the shops unassisted.
Blocking of the pavement with parked cars will force her to use the road which is hazardous given
the visibility issues. With the close being off the busy Doddington Road, access constraints will
cause hazards to residents as they access the close if it is blocked by vehicles. Large delivery

vehicles already have to reverse out of the close onto Doddington Road, this development will only
increase the nsk of an accident.

46



1 Tap Lodge Close

Lincaln LNG 3JA

05 March 2019

Directorate of Communities & Environment

City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln LN1 1DF

marie.smyth@lincoln.gov.uk

Ref 2019,/0079/FUL

| wish to lodge my objections to the proposed change of use of 8 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln LNG 314 from a
Dwelling-house [C3) to a 7-bedroom HMO (Sui Generis).

Although | believe this is an admiral cause, | do not think that 8 Top Lodge Close is the right place for any

My grounds for objection are:

1} Parking/Increased Traffic

The Close cannot accommaodate the increase in traffic/parking that this would create. Parking at the
property when built was initlally for 4 cars. With the current conversion of the garage now almost
cormplete this has reduced parking by 2 spaces. The Close already has limited areas in which to park
and although the developer states that residents will not have cars themselves it is unrealistic to
expect that they will not have visitors especially as an ‘element of care’ is involved.

As number & is on a bend at the entrance to the Close any additional parking could cause issuas for
any emergency vehicles, ar large delivery/works vehicles requiring access to the Close. It is my
understanding that the Paolice and other Emergency Services receive numerous calls from similar
HMOs in the locality, so it is not unreasonable to expect similar issues to arise on the Clase.

Access has already been severely restricted regularly since late December, and is ongoing, with a
number of works vehicles attending the property. This has caused difficulties for current residents
leaving and returning from work, Only the other day there were 2 small vehicles parked at number 8
and ane parked on the road outside number B with a further van blocking my drive causing my
daughter to have to wait for a workman to move his van so that she could go to work.

Safeguarding of Proposed Residents

The prosed residents [according to the applicant) include those with learning difficulties or Mental
Health issues. This gives rise to Safeguarding lssues regarding their safety on a daily basis. As there
will be no Tive in carers’ if a resident urgently requires help it may nat be available immediately and
this may cause further anxiety or panic.

The exit from the Clase (approx. only 50 feet away from the house) is straight ontoe an extremely busy
Daddington Road. If one of the residents were to panic (for whatever reason) and run out of the

47



3)

1)

5)

B

B)

house into the road they could cause a serious accident resulting not only in injury, or death, to
thamselves but to others too.

If a resident were to run in the other direction, there is a lake only 19.50 meters from the property.
Again, if they were to panic and jump the fence, they could end up in the lake resulting in serious
injury or death to themselves ar any potential rescuer.

Safety of Children
Currently, as this is a Private Road, young children living in the Clase (including my own grandchildren
who spend the majority of thelr school holidays here) are able to play safely in the Close. Increased

traffic would hawve a very real impact on their safety and freedom.

Inappropriate Area

= Top Lodge Cluse, in my opinion, is nol suilable Tor this bype of property. Although close Lo a main
road the nearest shops are 2 miles away (fine on a sunny day but not so good in the winter].

# There is nothing for residents to do except visit the local pub which is approx. 100 yds from the
Close, this is not very conducive to recovery if you are a recovering alcoholic, a recovering drug user
or are on medications that do not react well to alcohol consumption.

* There are only 9 homes in the Close, so it is not a typical area for someone trying to integrate back
into society.

Other More Suitable Properties

There were [are) several other more suitable properties on the market then and now. They all have
better off road parking facilitles and are closer to local amenitles. Most are cheaper than the price
paid for 8 Top Lodge Close.

Future HMO Usage

A further concern is that if HMO status were granted there would be nothing to prevent the current
owner from deciding that it would be more profitable to rent as a straight HMO without the element
of care or from selling on the house with its HMO status.

Potential Harm

In a supporting statement provided by the applicant they state that their application has arisen “due
to a need for supported living within the region” and end by stating “the need clearly outweighs the
horm”, They therefore acknowledge that this will in fact cause harm to the residents of the Close, It is
my aginion that if there is any potential for harm as stated by the applicant then the application
should be denled.

Misleading/Inaccurate Information

All supparting documents are in the name of 28A Supported Living Ltd., yet, according to The Land
Ragistry, they are not the ewners of the property. The property is owned by Allarten Investmants
Limited of Leicester.

28a Supported Living made a big issue in their Supparting Statement of the fact that they are a non-
profit organisation. This should have no relevance as they are not the owners but the lessee of the
property, the owners can terminate the lease agreement they have with 28a. Allerton Investments,
the actual owners of the property, are as far removed from a non-profit as it is possible to be. There
website (although still under construction) states that they have £100m in assets and their strategy
SLates:

"Asz a growing independent multl industry group of companies, it [z Allerton Groups aim to encompass d
diverse amyd extensive portfodio of interesis o meeeimise olf of the key elements of the Group. By keeping ils
Core Values at the forefront of all decisions, Allerton Group will continue to expand into exciting, developing
markets - giving real growth on assets and prafitability,

48



Qur strategy is to achieve this by recruiting innovators, influencers and experts in their field. We will then
have expertise across a diverse range of industries; allowing us to seek aut innovative revenue streams and
opportunities for growth. Allerton Group takes a long-term view of market synergies across Its various group
companies with a view to providing sustainable and reputable growth,”

“Our business invests significant resources to expand its portfolio after careful assessment of refurmn
on capital”

It is therefore not unreasonable to think that once this particular type of market has been saturated and
becomes less profitable that they would find a more lucrative purpose for 8 Top Lodge, perhaps student
rentals, or rentals to young professionals, all of whom would have different needs, and in the majority of cases
would have a vehicle.

It is also worth noting that on the original application that the application contains inaccurate information:

5. The applicant answered ‘No’ — work commenced on the property during the Christmas break and has been
on-going ever since then.

6. The applicant answered ‘No’ — the site is currently vacant (as in no-one is living in the property).

7. The applicant answered ‘No’ - new additional widows, new interior walls, new interior plumbing, new
interior electrics.

9. The applicant answered ‘No’ - by virtue of the fact that the garage is being converted parking is reduced by
2 spaces therefore it is relevant,

11. The applicant answered ‘No’ - 8 Top lodge is in fact less than 20 metres from the lake.

12. (a){b) and (c) "Biodiversity and Geological Conservation”, the applicant answered ‘No’ - Lodge Lake Is
within 19.50 metres of the house and is a place of Special Scientific Interest.

17. The applicant answered ‘No’ —the conversion of the garage [non-residential floorspace) to a self-contained
unit is a change from non-residential usage to residential.

18. The applicant answered ‘No’ = although it is my understanding that staff will not be living-in they will need
to visit daily.

25. Certificare of Ownership — neither Mr Khan ar 28a Suppaorted Living are the owners of the property,
Allerton Investments are - although 28a may be the lessee It is unlikely that they will have been granted a 7
year lease before planning permission has been granted.

Thank you for your time,

Regards

Elizabeth Young

49



1 Top Lodge Close

Lincoln LNG 3)A

06 March 2012

Directorate of Communities & Environment
City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln LN1 1DF
marie.smythi@lincolngov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

Ref 2019/0079/FUL

| write to register my objection to the above planning application.

Whilst | understand the need for such institutions the location is unsuitable and not in the best
interests of either party.

| set out below my reasons why the application should be denied.

1 Neighbourhood

Top Lodge Close is a small, quiet and secluded family orientated cul-de-sac with only 9 executive
style family dwellings. Any change of use to the dwelling would be out of keeping with the area. |
would not feel safe allowing my grandchildren to play outdoors in what was previously a very safe
environment and is something any parent will immediately understand.

Since it is proposed to have 7 short term residencies within the property there would be no
continuity and ever changing faces on the Close. This would not be conducive to the smooth running
of the Close as our children are taught not to speak to strangers and it may scare them if approached
(albeit innocently) by these persons.

It could also result in the lowering of standards of upkeep and maintenance to the property.

Since the purpose of such HMO's is to integrate its residents back into society a busy environment is
essential. This cannot happen in this location as there simply is no one to integrate with. There are
very few other properties in the vicinity and no local amenities where they could meet and mix with
others so fails to meet its prime objective.

2 Parking and Access

There is already very limited access and parking on the Close. Visitors to the properties frequently
have need to park on the only available space on the pavement on a blind corner leading directly
ontao a very busy main road which is a potential danger to anyone accessing or leaving the Close.
Each property is allocated 4 spaces and with the proposed conversion of the garage this would mean
cars parking behind one another so more manoeuvring freversing into the close required.

50



3 Effect on Close

| note the developers do not propose to have a resident carer on site to deal with amy issues or
episodes which may arise i.e. medical issues, disturbances etc. so residents will be left to their own
devices which given their issues is most unsatisfactory. | further understand the Police, Emergency
Services and other rapid response teams receive numerous calls from similar HMO's in the locality,
so it is not unreasonahble to expect similar issues to arise on the Close.

4 Business Model

2Ba Supported Living is a non-profit organisation set up specifically to provide supported housing
and is registered with the Local Authority to obtain funding.

8 Top Lodge Close was purchased by Allerton Investment Ltd (part of the Allerton Group boasting
assets of £100m) on 6 December 2015. Allerton is a property investment company which only
invests in properties after careful assessment of their return on capital and which give real growth
an assets and profitability. They have 75 similar properties (per their Website).

Properties are purchased converted and rented to 28a Supported Living who are assured full
occupancy at all times as part of their arrangement with the local Authority (as there is always a
waiting list). This has the added advantage that there is no risk to Allerton in securing rentals within
the private sector with its assodated problems.

This fact is not mentioned in the application presumably as it is felt it would give more credibility and
be more favourably received coming from a non-profit making organisation than an extremely
successful property investmeant company.

Although at first sight providing a much needed service to the Community, this is secondary to the
main activity of the group which is growth and profitability which is far from the “non-profit making”
ethics on which the application is based. This is in fact an extremely effective business model with a
high profile perception of creating good for the community.

5 Property acquisitions

Properties are acquired on a random basis by Allerton irrespective of where the property is situated
and what impact it will have on its surroundings the only proviso being that the property is a good
investment. It does not have to be suitable for purpose which is clearly the case at Top Lodge Close.

These properties will attain the same rate per room from the Local Authority wherever situated and
receive a constant stream of residents so guaranteeing full occupancy wherever situated so location
is of no importance.

28a Supported Living is merely a vehicle to enable Allerton to achieve their main objective under the
guise of the good of the community which is clearly demonstrated at Top Lodge Close wherz it
appears no consideration has been given to the viability of such a project at this specific location
which is whally inappropriate and not suitable for such purpose.

With this in mind it is difficult to give any credence to the application and it should be rejected
6 Alternatives

At the time of purchase there were several other far more suitable properties on the market in the
area in more suitable locations and close to local amenities. However 8 Top Lodge Close is a better

51



property in a better area and fits the profile of the aAllerton property portfolio and presumablhy
offers a better return on investment.

Top Lodge Close has no facilities other than a public house situated 100 yards away on the main road
which is an unacceptable risk as the residents could wander there at any time during the day or
evening as they would have nothing else to do and could result in serious alcohal related
disturbances and assodated problems. The only alternative for the residents would be to remain in
the close or on the very busy main road less than 20 yards away which would be a danger to all
concerned. The nearest shop is 2 miles away.

7 Integrity of developers

Itis an important principle of decision making that process is open and transparent which is not
evident here and | have severe reservations regarding this application.

The ownership certificate (note 25) states that “nobody except myself (agent) fapplicant (Mr Kahn
for 28a Supported Living) was the owner of any part of the land or buildings to which the application
relates”. The owner must have a freehold interest or a leasehold interest with at least 7 years to run.

The freehold is owned by Allerton Investments Ltd. It is extremely unlikely that a 7 year lease has
been granted to 28a Supported Living prior to passing of the planning application.

The developers state they are a Lincoln City based organisation which is incorrect and work closely
with Lincolnshire County Council and have 7 other facilities in the area. The supporting statement
indicates they have never received any complaints from these. However | have been unable to
locate any of these properties so this is unsubstantiated.

The application states 28a Supported Living to be COC registered yet a check of the CQC website
reveals nothing unless they are registered under a different name (which is not evident from the
planning documents) and do not appear in the Lincolnshire Care Directony.

The original application contained deliberate misrepresentations. It stated work had not been
commenced at the property. Contractors have been working at the premises since acquisition in
December and work is already substantially completed.

A further planning application was submitted on & February for the conversion of the garage to living
accommuodation This application was granted 2 weeks later despite no neighbour notification being
received which is unusual since neighbouring properties are now overlooked from the new windows.

| find it extremely concerning the developers are treating these applications as a “done deal” and |
cannot help wondering on whose advise they have proceeded.

The application also stated there were no changes required for parking. This again is untrue since
the double garage was being converted to further living accommodation thus reducing parking
availability by 2 spaces.

There appear to be transparency issues and | wonder what else they are hiding which is a further
CONCErmn.

8 Class of resident

The initial application was for a 6 bedroom premise to accommodate adults with learning disabilities
and mental health issues. This has now been revised to a 7 bedroom HMO (Sui Generis) although the
purpase remains the same. | work with such persons on a regular basis. These persons are subject to

52



unpredictable behaviour and can be volatile with violent outbursts which can be a danger to all
concernad and particularly to young children.

9 Potential change of use f Risk

The supporting statement is very specific as to the current application. Although it is not the
intention of the developers to change this use to other categories their website shows that in
addition to this category they already provide housing for the homeless, ex-offenders, asylum
seekers, recovering addicts and homeless parents to be.

The property could be sold on at a later date with licence attached and the category changed for
whatever purpose.

Any such change of use could have a radical effect on the Close and could attract undesirables to the
area with a significant increase in the possibility of theft and damage to property. Statistics show
areas with HMO's have an increased crime rate. This could also significantly increase the amount of
traffic on the Close.

10 Property values

If the application were to be granted it would in effect become a “DSS style hostel” but for persons
with special needs and issues but funded by the Local Authority in an exclusive area.

Most residents have made these properties their forever homes and have invested heavily in their
homes. Any such change of use would have a massive impact on property values on the Close and
could make them potentially unsaleable.

11 Covenants

I understand title deeds are of no relevance in such planning matters. However, irrespective of the
outcome of this application there are several restrictive covenants within the Deeds strictly
prohibiting any such development or change of use so ultimately will not be able to proceed even if
granted.

Yours faithfully

A P Young

53



Lincolnshire

Place Directorate COUNTY COUNCIL

Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street
Lincoln LN1 1XX

Tel: (01522) 782070
E-Mail: highwayssudssupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk

To: Lincoln City Council Application Ref: 2019/0079/FUL

With reference to this application dated 31 January 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location
8 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN6 3JA

Date application referred by the LPA Type of application: Outline/Full/RM/:
5 February 2019 FUL

Description of development

Change of use to 7 bed House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Sui Generis) with
an element of care (Revised Description)

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.

CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)

HI08

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522
782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will
be required within the public highway in association with the development permitted under
this Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and
timings of these works.

NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed
development is acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning
application.

Case Officer: Date: 22 February 2019
Becky Melhuish

for Warren Peppard

Flood Risk & Development Manager

54



Good morning
Looking at the above planning application we would not object —regards

Steven Biddle
Network Technician
Plant Protection
Cadent Gas

55



This page is intentionally blank.



Iltem No. 4b

Application Number: | 2019/0046/FUL

Site Address: 97 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire
Target Date: 19th March 2019

Agent Name: Kingsmead Design Ltd

Applicant Name: Mr Gordon Johnson

Proposal: Erection of a two storey dwelling. (REVISED PLANS)

Background - Site Location and Description

The application is for the erection of a two storey dwelling (with rooms in the roof served
by dormers). The proposal would be erected on land to the rear, west of 97 Boultham Park
Road, a two storey detached dwelling located on the corner of Boultham Park Road and
Earls Drive. The site is currently occupied by garden land and a double garage/store with
vehicular access from Earls Drive. The site is located within Flood Zone 3.

The boundary to the north of the site is defined by an approximately 2m high conifer hedge
with the garden of 95 Boultham Park Road beyond, which sits at a slightly lower land level.
To the east of the site is 1 Earls Drive, a bungalow, with the side elevation of the
neighbour’s garage and a wall with fence panels above forming the boundary. There are
three further bungalows adjacent to no. 1 with the remainder of the properties on Earls
Drive, including no. 2 opposite, being two storey. Properties in the area are constructed
with red or buff brick and concrete tiles to the roof.

The dwelling would replace the existing garage and would incorporate three bedrooms and
a double garage, utilising the existing vehicular access. The application has been revised
during the process, firstly to address an objection from the Environment Agency and again
to improve the relationship with the neighbouring 95 Boultham Park Road; both of these
will be detailed later within the report. All neighbours were re-consulted on the first revision
with 95 Boultham Park Road directly notified of the second revision affecting their property.

The application has been called in to be determined by committee at the request of Clir.
Hewson.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 14th March 2019, also visiting the neighbouring property of 95 Boultham
Park Road on the 27" March and the 30" April.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
e Policy LP2 The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy
e Policy LP14 Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk

e Policy LP26 Design and Amenity

57



e National Planning Policy Framework

Issues

Principle of use
Visual amenity
Residential amenity
Flood risk

Access and highways

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Highways & Planning Comments Received
Environment Agency Comments Received
Lincolnshire Police Comments Received
Anglian Water Comments Received
Upper Witham Internal | Comments Received
Drainage Board

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Mr James Corner 1 Earls Drive
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN6 7TY

Mr & Mrs Epps 95 Boultham Park Road
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7SE

Consideration

Letters of objection have been received from the neighbouring property at 1 Earls Drive

58




regarding the visual impact of the proposal and that the height relative to the existing
garage was not clear from the plans. As outlined above, all neighbours were re-consulted
on the first set of revised plans, which, at the request of officers, also show the outline and
height of the existing garage to enable this to be considered by neighbours.

The occupants of 95 Boultham Park Road have raised objections on the grounds of the
height, loss of light to the garden and garage, overlooking and loss of privacy. Concern is
also raised regarding the loss of the boundary hedge and the proposed replacement
fence. The objection makes reference to a previous planning permission for the existing
garage, which includes conditions stating that there shall be no further floors of
accommodation, to prevent overlooking, and that the garage shall be for domestic
purposes only. These conditions were applied to ensure that the garage could not be
amended, as would otherwise be possible under permitted development and result in a
potentially harmful effect on neighbouring properties. These conditions are not relevant to
this proposal as each application is considered on its own merits. In any case matters
relating to residential amenity will be considered as part of the assessment process for this
current proposal.

Further objections were received following consultation on the revised plans from 95
Boultham Park Road, expressing concern regarding the increase in height and overlooking
towards the garden and property due to the proximity and both the height and position of
windows. Flooding was also identified as an issue.

Objections from the neighbours have also been raised on the grounds of the impact on
house values and that a covenant restricts development on a portion of the application
site. However, these are not material planning considerations that can be taken into
account.

Principle of Use

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) Policy LP2 advises that the Lincoln Urban Area will
be the principal focus for development in Central Lincolnshire, including housing. CLLP
Policy LP1 states that there should be a presumption in favour of sustainable development
and planning applications that accord with the policies in the local plan will be approved
without delay. This presumption in favour of sustainable development reflects the key aim
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

The principle of residential development in this location would therefore be supported,
subject to consideration against other policy requirements.

Visual Amenity

It is considered that the site is of a sufficient size to comfortably accommodate the
proposed dwelling along with the associated garden land and parking. The proposed
dwelling forms an ‘L’ shape accommodating rooms in the roof, served by dormers and
rooflights. Officers consider that the scale, mass and proportions of the dwelling are
acceptable, particularly as the elevation when viewed from the street is staggered,
breaking up frontage.

The finished floor level of the proposal has been raised to address flood risk concerns and

the ridge would measure 11.7m high compared to the 9.6m ridge height of the existing
garage. The proposal has similar proportions to a two storey dwelling and therefore would

59



be expected to sit higher than the bungalow of 1 Earls Drive, however, it is not considered
that it would appear unduly dominant when viewed in this context. The application includes
a street scene view from Earls Drive which shows the proposal in context with 97
Boultham Park Road, with the ridge sitting lower than the existing property. While
objections have been raised by neighbours regarding the height and visual impact officers
are satisfied that the proposal would sit comfortably within the street scene and that it
would relate well to the surrounding properties in terms of the height, scale and mass, as
required by CLLP Policy LP26.

It is also considered that the design of the proposal is acceptable. The dwelling would be
constructed with buff brick, a slate roof, lead to the dormer face and cheeks and grey
aluminium framed windows. Design features such as stepped entrances, details to the
gable ends, brick corbelling and a chimney add interest. The design is different to the
existing properties in the street and wider area, however, there is no defined character with
dwellings varying in their form, scale and design. Officers are therefore satisfied that the
design of the proposal would sympathetically complement the local architectural style, in
accordance with Policy LP26. The proposal would also be in accordance with the NPPF,
which requires that developments should be sympathetic to local character whilst not
preventing change.

Residential Amenity

The rear, north boundary of the site forms the side boundary of 95 Boultham Park Road,
defined by an approximately 2m high hedge. The proposed dwelling would be located
1.4m from this, sitting opposite the bottom section of the neighbour’s garden, with the
separation to the neighbouring dwelling being approximately 17m. The neighbouring
occupants have raised concern regarding the proximity and height of the proposal,
resulting in loss of light, which has been exacerbated by the increase in the finished floor
level. The proposed elevations demonstrate the height of the dwelling relative to the
proposed 2m high replacement boundary treatment, with the finished ground floor level
sitting only marginally below the top of the fence. However, officers do not consider that
the proposal would have an unacceptably overbearing effect on the adjacent garden or,
given the separation to the neighbour’s dwelling, on the rear aspect. While a degree of
loss of light will be experienced this will mainly be to the bottom section of the neighbour’s
garden, and, again is not considered to the unacceptably harmful.

In terms of overlooking and loss of privacy, another concern raised by the neighbour, the
proposal has been revised to improve this relationship. Within the rear, north elevation
facing the garden the windows, although sitting much higher that the boundary treatment,
are to be obscure glazed with only small top hung openings, which will sit 1.7m above the
internal ground floor level. Officers are therefore satisfied that there would be no
opportunity to overlook from this elevation.

The side, west elevation facing towards the rear of no. 95 has also been amended. The
study window, which would have the closest relationship to the boundary, is also to be
obscure glazed up to a minimum internal height of 1.7m. The window on the right hand
side (when viewed from inside) will be the only openable part of this window and will be
hinged so that it opens out towards the boundary. Overlooking from the open window will
be to the south, over the proposed property’s own garden. In addition the section of the
landing and also the steps that were originally proposed adjacent to the boundary have
been removed, and there would now be a separation of 5m. Officers are satisfied that
these revisions improve the relationship and that the level of overlooking would not be

60



unacceptably harmful.

Conditions to remove permitted development rights and require full details of the
replacement boundary fence would be applied to any grant of permission. These
conditions would ensure that this relationship is maintained and accordingly officers are
satisfied that the amenities which the neighbouring occupants of 95 Boultham Park Road
may reasonably expect to enjoy would not be unduly harmed by the development.

The proposed dwelling would have a similar relationship with the host property with a total
separation between the two properties being 21m. A 2m high fence would form the new
boundary between the two gardens. Accordingly officers have no issue with this.

The side elevation of the bungalow of 1 Earls Drive would be located to the side, east of
the site. The rear portion of the ‘L’ shaped dwelling would be located 6.5m from this
boundary, with the front section located over 11m away. The boundary is defined by the
neighbours own garage and a wall/fence. It is not considered that the proposal would
appear unduly overbearing and loss of light would be limited to the late afternoon only. The
only first floor window facing towards the neighbouring property is a dormer, serving a
bedroom. Given the position of this window and the separation it is not considered that this
would result in an unacceptable degree of overlooking.

Officers would conclude that, while the proposal would have an impact on neighbouring
properties, this would not be to a degree that would warrant the refusal of the application.
In accordance with CLLP Policy LP26 it is therefore considered that the amenities which
neighbouring occupants may reasonably expect to enjoy would not be unduly harmed by
or as a result of the development.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The Environment Agency (EA) raised an initial objection to application. The application site
lies within Flood Zone 3 and the NPPF requires that a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) must
be submitted when development is proposed in such locations, to enable an assessment
of the flood risk.

In response to this request the applicant submitted a FRA. This was considered by the EA
and they have withdrawn their objection subject to a condition that the development will be
carried out in accordance with the FRA, which specifies requirements such as finished
floor levels and flood resilience and resistant measures. This condition would be applied to
any grant of consent.

The proposal would therefore meet requirements of CLLP Policy LP14 as the EA are
satisfied that that there is no unacceptable increased risk of flooding to the development
site or to existing properties.

An objection to the application has been received from the Upper Witham Drainage Board.
However, in addition to the EA having no issues with the application and the Lincolnshire
County Council in their capacity as Lead Local Flood Authority have no objections in
respect of surface water drainage.

Access and Highways

The application site will provide off-street parking but also has good access to local

61



facilities and public transport. The Lincolnshire County Council as Local Highway Authority
has raised no objections to the application and it is therefore concluded that there is no
issue with the access from Earls Drive or the proposed parking arrangements.

Other Matters

Air Quality and Sustainable Transport

The City Council’s Pollution Control Officer has advised that, whilst it is acknowledged that
the proposed development, when considered in isolation, may not have a significant
impact on air quality, the numerous minor and medium scale developments within the city
will have a significant cumulative impact if reasonable mitigation measures are not
adopted. Accordingly a condition will require details of a charging point to be submitted for
approval and for the unit installed before the property is first occupied.

Bin Storage

An area for bin storage is not identified on the site plan, however, there is sufficient
external space within the site for this to be accommodated.

Conclusion

The principle of a dwelling in this location is considered to be acceptable and the
development would relate well to the site and surroundings, particularly in relation to siting,
height, scale, massing and design. The proposal would also not cause undue harm to the
amenities which occupiers of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to enjoy.
Technical matters relating to flood risk, drainage and highways are also to the satisfaction
of the relevant consultees. The proposal would therefore be in accordance with the
requirements of Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Policies LP1, LP2, LP14 and LP26, as
well as guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally subject to the following conditions:

Development to commence within three years

Development to be constructed in accordance with the submitted plans
Development in accordance with Flood Risk Assessment

Details of an electric vehicle charging point

Details of boundary treatment

Removal of permitted development rights

Construction of the development (delivery times and working hours)

62



97 Boultham Park Road: plans and photos

Site location plan

63



PROPOSED BUILDING PLOT
site boundary

o

site arrangen

—

Proposed site layout

64

:




P — ke o —
- {‘\
—— T — —’.T_
LIBRARY ||
STUDY N
~y DOUBLE GARAGE [extg) §
1 -_— —HF
= ——— HALL ———— R ————
uTLITY [ —— L oA
| P
EEEN YD
' KITCHEN =3 fe———
21 pam———
= J |
!
-EP—FFL 5.600
________
DINING { LIVING
e e
I T T H
%Flg_ _} -
Il —
— \k .
e up .
| il | —
——— —
i Fr 7" B -

T

ground floor plan

1:100 at A1

|
FULL HEMGHT
OPEN VOID

I

|
I

first floor plan

1:100 at A1

.




GFFFLS600 |

arage. exta.qaraae 4.600

Front, south elevation to Earls Drive

_r.
| A -
VRN
s h
. / N
- ! 3 - . . _
| L] O
~
i level 3 obscuration ~ EI
/ glazing to min. 1700mm AFFL \\
AN _ L i
= o
g R ———
: MM
— 1).WAL
2).ROC

Side, west elevation towards Boultham Park Road properties

66



the ground floor finished level,

@ NE: 2No. opening lights to ba top hung.
Lowest point of either opening light
must not be lass than 1700mm abpwve

Lavel 3 obscyra
glazing B

| |
Ul otesngessng

narth alaviatinan

North, rear elevation towards garden of 95 Boultham Park Road

T
i
]
|

i
|
1
i

Il Il h
I O T T T

LR

pt I L é

(5] o0
J\ i II
r

prnpérty boundary

aact alaviatinn

East, side elevation towards 1 Earls Drive

67




11.700 new ridge

|] ______________ ; | 9,800 extg.garage ridge

7.000 axtg.garage eaves

[ 12.0m |L '

Street view from Earls Drive with host property, 97 Boultham Park Road, to left

Existing garage from garden of 97 Boultham Park Road, boundary with no. 95 in background

68



Existing garage and access from Earls Drive

Site access and 1 Earls Drive

69




Site boundary with 1 Earls Drive

(8o B e

s

a1, N ]

Existing garage and view towards 97 and 95 Boultham Park Road

70




Photograph from garden of 95 Boultham Park Road of boundary hedge and existing garage

71




72



97 Boultham Park Road: consultation responses

From: o cove [

Sent: 15 February

Toc Technical Team (City of Lincoln Councd)

Subject: proposed development at 97 Boultham Park Rd, two stocey dweling,
Categories: Milly Coucam

For the anention of Mania Smith,
Dear Maria,

We wish to object to the proposed two storey development which is an extension of the double garsge with
garden store which was erected in the summer of 2011 built to housing regulations with all services being
connected, ie. gas electric, water and scwerage.

Our main concern is the total invasion of privacy to the rear of our property. The first floor windows in the
study and bedroom of the proposed dwelling provide a close and uninterrupied view inlo our conservatory,
kitchen and our fiest floor bedrooms. A full on view on to our patio will also be available. There are at
present two skylight windows in the roof of the existing garage which will become windows m bedroom 2
and the hathroom of the proposed build, These will look directly over our orchard arca where we spead
Quality time on summer evenings. As you can appreciate there will be no privacy what so ever, This would
seriously affect our way of life and our enjoyment of our property, and we believe have an effect on the
house vislue.

A Joss of Light in my garage until the sun passes the planned build would also have 2n effect.

The plans also show the removal of the boundary bedge between our properties along side the propesed
development. This needs to be maintained or replaced with a fence of the same height as existing.

We still have tn our possession a Notification of Decision from Mr P Seddon of Lincoln City council of the
13 April 2011, relating to the original build of the "Double garmge with garden store™ which has a list of
"Conditions to be adhered 10 at all times”. Number 3 states "There shall be no further floors of
accommodation installed within the garage. Reason. To prevent overdooking from the roof lights to the
surmounding residential propertics. Number 4 states "The garage shall be used for domestic purposes only, in
assoctation with 97 Boultham Park Road. We believe it has been used for business purposes as neither of’
the two cars present at the property have ever been inside it. If the build goes ahead, two out of the four
conditions will have been broken, making the issuing of these conditions meaningless,

We are absolutely amazed a1 the timing of the application. We do enjoy time away with our caravan and we
do go away for long periods. Last January through to April we were away abroad, This year we left with our
caravan, which is i full view of the Johnson's on the 21 January, the day that the application was received
by the council. We belicve they assamed we would be away for a long period and not be able to raise an
objection giving them a "fait accompli” on our retura. These under banded diny tricks efforts failed
however due 1o the fact that we were away attending a close relatives funeral which took place on the 22
January in Kent. By trying these tactics it only goes to show that they new what impact this build would
have on us and is yet another example of whatcver Mr Johnson wants he will try and achieve by any
methods he can.

We are ngainst this development for reasons stated above, but the only way it may be partly accoptable is if
the two storcy dwelling was single storcy bungalow therefore having no windows in the loft arcas and

maintaining the present height of fencing between the two properties,
1

We understand that a site mecting will be arranged following our objections. If the site meeting is beld on
Mr Johason's peoperty, the impact on our property will 2ot be apparent due 10 the boundary bedge. We
would sppreciate being informed of the date of the visit by e-mail, a5 we would very much hke meet you
ourselves to discuss the matter.

Plesse would you coafirm by e-mail that this objection has been received,

Yours faithfully,

Mr & Mrs Epps. 95 Boultham Park Roax!

73



From: Jan Epps|

Sent: 15 April 2019 14:00

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council) <technicalteam@lincoln.gov.uk>
Subject: Revised planning application re: 97 Boultham Park Road

Dear Marie,

We wish to object to the revised planning application concerning the property next door to us. We feel this build would have serious effects on our
quality of life and therefore should be rejected.

Having read the flood risk assessment, it is noted that the development falls into the Zone 3 - High Probability risk. While this document is very
detailed, we are aware after prolonged rainfall we have standing water collecting on our lawn at the rear end of the garden and we are concerned
that this development will only make matters worse as the foundations are to be raised by one meter.

Having to raise the foundations of this build by one meter makes this build totally unacceptable. We will be dwarfed by the building as the height
above the existing garage 15 an extra 2.1 meters (almost 7 feet). also more importantly from the overbearing north elevation gable end being so
close to our boundary, loosing a significant amount of sunshine from our garage, greenhouse and garden / growing area. The windows on the north
elevation will be 1.5 meters above the 6 ft fence to the top of the window, making the 6 ft fence along our boundary mnadequate. Obscure glass has
been added on these latest plans, obviously pre-empting our objections. but these windows will be able to open, I presume!

The extra height also brings the west elevation ground floor windows and doors closest to our boundary into an overlooking position directly into
our conservatory and kitchen and to an extent into our bedroom. The height being over 1.5 meters above the fence, 3.5 meters above existing
ground level The walkway also permits an uninterrupted view across onto our property.

This proposed build i1s not about making life easier for a retired couple. Firstly they are not retired. as stated in the application. they own JCL
Accommodation, and this is yet another business related move in order to expand their property portfolio and make more money from another one
if not two properties to rent out, no matter who 1s affected by 1t.

We really hope common sense will prevail and permission for this eyesore of a build will be rejected.

Yours faithfully,

Mr & Mrs A Epps

74



From: Jan Epps

Sent: 01 May 2019 13:14

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)

Subject: Revised planning application number 2019/0046/FUL at 97 Boultham Park Road.
Attachments: 20190430_101240.,jpg

For the attention of K Manning and M Smyth.

Further to our objection dated 15th April 2019, we would like to reiterate the point of the overlooking issue
due to the closeness to our property of the west elevation ground floor windows and doors, due to the height
and close proximity to our boundary. As these windows and doors will be considerably higher than the
hedge, then this is quite clearly an overlooking issue and this planning application should be refused. We
enclose a photograph of the existing structure (garage & garden store), taken from our rear bedroom
window, bearing in mind that the new structure will be 6.74 meters closer to our property.

Although we understand that land ownership issues do not affect planning permission being granted, as far
as we are aware, there is a restricted covenant on part of the land. This covenant affected the original
planning permission of the garage and garden store and subsequent plans had to be resubmitted relocating
the structure to land not affected by this covenant. If these plans are approved, then surely the applicant is
in breach of this covenant?

If these plans are approved, we are very concerned this will set a president for more dwellings to be built in
rear gardens on Boultham Park Road.

Yours Faithfully,

Mr & Mrs A Epps.

75



Customer Details
Name: Mr James Corner
Address: 1 Earls Drive Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment:| ask you the question what is the most important information about a new development
to an existing structure? How big or high compared to existing building! This is the only reference
us neighbours to compare existing to proposed, you ask for comment and you are unable to tell
the public this from the plans presented for inspection, do you know the difference in height of the
garage part, to the house 2 story part ? You don't know, the plans are not to scale on height so |
will inform you as | have worked it out at 2 meters are you able to confirm this measurement and
will you consider this in your assessment of visual impact.

) . ) ) . - Oy 4 ) |/
f /C( AV N AT /’ j\_,r( 0 /\ {

- | ] / ) ’ | P . /. /

//"?;r' /({ NCX /":;*‘f;-i,/\'fﬂt[."j t&/ F &8 ‘/ /4 Yy /1‘/1:’4
= # / | 0
N L’,va_i /‘, I (Do fLSL(;“-,_ A€/ /E) L*Q
CA / ) QI c{ CACC. 283 /f-j,, oy L»Q b (Al ,"‘ r N\

| \ o\ y
as Stared by Allen Homeas
/"/C_ Lrre Y4 '//i //{fu Uce g3 o

leind e fa/u";-*p‘x ‘E’(W/J 0% ,{/} \or ey
/“\UﬁnLu'-~ has po Qeceas F o) v/ =

Com ML A %, ] g'f"‘f""i fir;»>:"\,/ S LWETTY

76



Llncolnshlre

Environment & Economy ROV GRUCA

Lancaster House R boting for 4
368 Orchard Street g
Lincoin LN 1XX

Yol (01522) 762070
E-Mal! re.gov.uk

To: Lincoln City Council Application Ref: 2015/0046/FUL

With reference to this application dated 21 January 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location

97 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LNG 7SE
Date application referred by the LPA Type of application: Outline/FullRM/;
30 January 2019 FUL

Descniption of development

Erection of a two storey dweling

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.

CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)
NO OBS
Having given due regard to the appropnate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincoinshire County Council (as
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed
development is acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning
application.

HI08

Please contact the Lincoinshire County Council Streetworks and Pemitting Team on 01522
782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will
be required within the public highway in association with the deveiopment pemmitted under
this Consent. This will enable Lincoinshire County Council to assist in the coordination and
timings of these works.

IDB Commenets:
No development should be commenced until the Local Planning Authority, in consultation

with the Lead Local Flood Authonty has approved a scheme for the provision,
implementation and future maintenance of a surface water drainage system.

* If soakaways are proposed the suitability of new soakaways, as a means of surface water
disposal, should be to an appropriate standard and to the satisfaction of the Approving
Authority in conjunction with the Local Planning Authority. If the suitability is not proven the

Applicant should be requested to re-submit amended proposals showing how the Site is to
be drained. Should this be necessary this Board would wish to be reconsulted.
* It is note the SuDS box is also ticked.

Case Officer: Date: 20 February 2019

Polly Smith
for Warren Peppard
Fiood Risk & Development Manager

77



Environment
W Agency

FAC: Marie Smyth Owur ref: ANI2019/128613/02-L01
City of Lincoln Council Your ref: 2019004 6/FUL
Development Control

City Hall Beaumont Fee Date: 10 April 2019

Lineoln

Lincolnshire

LMN1 1DF

Dear Marie

Erection of a two storey dwelling
97 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LMG 7SE

Thank you for your email on 05 April 2019 with the amended Flood Risk Assesament
(FRA).

We have considered the amended FRA and would like to withdraw our objection
subject to the imposition of the following condition on any subsequent planning
permission granted:

The proposed development will only meet the National Planning Policy Framework's
requirements in relation to flood risk if the following planning condition is included.

Condition
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Flood Risk
Aszsesament dated Aprl 2019 and the following mitigation measures it details:
¢  Finighed floor levels shall be s=t no lower than 5.6 metres above Ordnance
Datum (ACD)
The development must have at least two storeys.
Flood resilience and resistance measures as described.

These mitigation measures shall ke fully implemented prior to cccupation and
subseguently in accordance with the scheme's timing/phasing amangements. The
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the
lifetime of the development.

Reazon
To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future cccupants.

Environmant Agenoy

Hene House (Pyichisy Lodges Indusinal Estaiz),
Pytchiey Lodge Road, Ketenng, Northants, NNAS EJ&
Emal: LNpianningiervironment-sgency gov.uk
WWW_POV. L Emvinen ment-agency

Cusiomeyr s=nvines ines 03708 08 08
Cabs fo 03 numbars CoSt the came o5 calls o Sandan
peopraptic numbers (e, rumbers beginning Wiy 0 or G2

Contfd_.

78



A= you are aware the discharge and enforcement of planning conditions rests with your
authorty. It iz, therefore, essential that you are satisfied that the proposed draft
condition meets the requirements of paragraph 4 of the Mational Planning Practice
Guidance (MPPG) (Use of Planning Conditions, section 2). Please notify us immediately
if you are unable to apply our suggested condition, as we may need to tailor our advice
accordingly.

In accordance with the MPPG (Determining a planning application, paragraph 019],
please notify us by email within 2 weeks of a decision being made or an application
being withdrawn_ Please provide us with either a link to, or, a copy of the decision
nofice.

Please consult us on the details submitted to your authority to discharge this condition
and on any subsequent amendmenta/alterations.

Should you reguire any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further,
please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.

Yours sincerely

Keri Monger
Sustainable Places - Planning Adviser

Direct dial 020 847 48545
Direct e-mail ker.mongerf@environment-agency.gov.uk

Dear Sir/Madam
Thank you for your email

The Pre-Development Team provide comments on planning applications for major proposals of 10
dwellings or more, or if an industrial or commercial development, more than 0.5 ha.

As your query is below this threshold we will not be providing comments. However, if there are
specific drainage issues you would like us to respond to, please contact us outlining the details.

If you have any further queries please contact the team on the number below.

Regards,

Sandra Olim

Pre-Development Advisor

Development Services

Anglian Water Services Limited

Telephone Office: 03456066087 Option 1

Thorpe Wood House, Thorpe Wood, Peterborough, PE3 6WT
https://www.anglianwater.co.uk/developers/pre-development.aspx

79



Dear Sir/Madam

REFEREMCE: 2019/0046&/FUL
DEVELOPMEMNT: ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY DWELLING
LOCATION: 97 BOULTHAM PARE ROAD, LINCOLM, LINCOLMSHIRE, LNG 75E

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the Upper
Witham Internal Drainage Board district.

The Board Objects in Principle to any development in flood plain (Zones 2 and 3 on the Environment
Agency flood maps) this site is in Zone 3 "an area with a high probability of flooding that benefits
from flood defenses’ to quote from the submitted documents. However it is up to City of Lincoln
Council as the planning Authority grant planning permission. The design and access statement states
‘the new dwelling FFL has been set to match the FFL of the existing to mitigate any concerns over
flood risk’ this is @ misleading statement. Having the FFL the same as the existing means the flood
risk is the same as the original dwelling. The proposed development remains at risk from flooding;-
exceedance of design flows in the river system, over topping of the flood defenses from flood risk,
beach of the flood defenses and reservoir failure.

Comment and information to Lincelnshire CC Highway SUDs Support
Mo development should be commenced until the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the
Lead Local Flood authority has approved a scheme for the provision, implementation and future
maintenance of a surface water drainage system.
. If soakaways are proposed the suitability of new soakaways, as a means of surface water
disposal, should be to an appropriate standard and to the satisfaction of the Approving
Authority in conjunction with the Local Planning Authority. If the suitability is not proven
the Applicant should be requested to re-submit amended proposals showing how the
Site is to be drained. Should this be necessary this Board would wish to be reconsulted.
. It is note the SuDS box is also ticked.

Regards

Guy Hird, Engineering Services Officer
Llpp-er Witham Internal Drainage Board

80



e
Lincolnshire

POLICE

policing with PRIDE

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE

Your Ref.  App. 2019/0046/FUL

Our Ref.  PGH

Development & Environmental Services
City Hall, Beaumont Fee

Lincoln, LN1 1DF

POLICE HEADQUARTERS
FO Box 989

LINCOLMN LM5 7TPH

Fax (01522) 558128

CDI: (01522) 558292

email
jehn.manuel@lincs. pnn.police.uk

31st January 2019

Re: 97 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LNG 75E

Thank wyou for your correspondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed

development.

Lincolnshire Police has no formal objection to this application.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarfication.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract. Weither the
Home Oiffice nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.
However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the apportunity for crimes to be committed.

Yours sinceraly,

John Manuel ma 84 (Hons) PGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.

Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO)

81



This page is intentionally blank.



Item No. 4c

Application Number: | 2019/0199/HOU

Site Address: 4 Southland Drive, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 30" May 2019

Agent Name: Philip King

Applicant Name: Mr J Shear

Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extension. (Resubmission
of 2018/1064/HOV)

Background

The application is for the erection of a single storey side and rear extension at 4 Southland
Drive, the property is a two storey semi-detached dwelling with a detached garage. The
property has previously been extended to the rear via a pitched roofed conservatory and
enclosed car port to the side, which would be partly removed to accommodate this
proposal. This application is a resubmission of planning application (2018/1064/HOU),
which was previously granted conditionally at planning committee on 7th November 2018.

The application has been revised during the course of the application, the original proposal
showed the eaves of the extension would likely encroach onto neighbouring land and an
objection to this effect was received from a neighbour. Although boundary/ land disputes
are ultimately private matters, officers approached the agent for clarification regarding the
matter, subsequently a revised drawing was submitted which depict the proposed
extension entirely within the curtilage of the applicants.

The application is being presented to Members of the Planning Committee as the applicant
is related to a member of staff working for Lincoln City Council.

Issues
To assess the proposal with regard to:

Local and National Planning Policy
Effect on visual amenity

Effect on residential amenity
Effect on Highway Safety

Consideration of Issues

The main issue in considering this application is the principle of development in this area of
the City having regard to National, Local and Emerging Policy and the current status of
those Policies.

National and Local Planning Policy

Paragraph 11 of the revised NPPF outlines that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development.

For decision taking, this means approving development proposals that accord with an up-
to-date development plan without delay.

Paragraph 127 states that planning decisions should ensure that developments:

83



a. will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;

b. are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c. are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d. establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;

e. optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount
and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local
facilities and transport networks; and

f. create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Paragraph 131 states that great weight should be given to outstanding or innovative
designs which promote high levels of sustainability, or help raise the standard of design
more generally in an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of their
surroundings.

The application is for the extension to a residential dwelling and therefore Policy LP26 -
Design and Amenity of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan is entirely relevant.

The following design principles within Policy LP26 would be pertinent with the development.

b. Make effective and efficient use of land;

c. Respect the existing topography, landscape character and identity, and relate well to
the site and surroundings, particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing,
form and plot widths;

d. Not result in the visual or physical coalescence with any neighbouring settlement;

Incorporate and retain as far as possible existing natural and historic features such

as hedgerows, trees, ponds, boundary walls, field patterns, buildings or structures;

g. Incorporate appropriate landscape treatment to ensure that the development can be
satisfactorily assimilated into the surrounding area,;

h. Provide well designed boundary treatments, and hard and soft landscaping that
reflect the function and character of the development and its surroundings;

i. Protect any important local views into, out of or through the site;

j-  Duly reflect or improve on the original architectural style of the local surroundings, or
embrace opportunities for innovative design and new technologies which
sympathetically complement or contrast with the local architectural style;

k. Use appropriate, high quality materials which reinforce or enhance local
distinctiveness, with consideration given to texture, colour, pattern and durability;

—h

Policy LP26 further states that the amenities which all existing and future occupants of
neighbouring land and buildings may reasonably expect to enjoy must not be unduly
harmed by or as a result of development. Proposals should demonstrate, where applicable
and to a degree proportionate to the proposal, how the following matters have been
considered, in relation to both the construction and life of the development:

84



. Compatibility with neighbouring land uses;
Overlooking;
Overshadowing;
Loss of light;

© o553

Residential Amenity

The proposed single storey flat roofed extension would be partly located to the side and
rear of the applicants dwelling, occupying a smaller footprint than the previously approved
scheme. Taking account of the existing scale of the structures at the applicants' property,
the previously approved proposal and their relationship to neighbouring properties, it is
noted the proposed extensions would have a comparable scale in terms of both height and
projection with similar fenestration openings. It is therefore considered this proposal would
not cause undue harm to residential amenity of any of the surrounding properties
occupants.

Visual Amenity

The single storey flat roofed extensions featuring a roof light would be open to limited public
views due to is positioning, however in any case, it is considered that the extension is of an
acceptable design with materials to closely match the host property and would therefore not
to be unduly harmful to visual amenity.

Highway Safety and Parking

The Lincolnshire County Council as Highway Authority has assessed the application and
has raised no objections to the proposal. Therefore based on this advice it is considered
that the proposal would not be detrimental to highway safety or traffic capacity

Flood Zone

The site is located within flood zone 2, thus having a probability of flooding, the applicant
has stated the extension would be constructed in accordance with the Environment Agency
standard advice for domestic extensions.

Conclusion

The proposed extensions are appropriately designed and would not cause unacceptable
harm to the character and appearance of the area nor the amenities of all existing and
future occupants of neighbouring properties, in accordance with Policy LP26 'Design and
Amenity' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019).

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally.

Report by: Planning Manager

85



86



KEY

Existing Facing Brickwork

@ Proposed Facing Brickwork \M i B
(to match existing)
m (®  Existing UPVC Windows / Doors
Existing Carport mx__”::m n%%:oﬂ Proposed UPVC Windows / Doors isti
< hown dashed shown dashe @ o 7 Existing Covered
S (to match existing) / Car Port
= JI,FHH,% (5 Existing Slate Rooftiles
@ J ﬁ | (6 Painted timber Fascia
thr K S
[ o
I LOUNGE B
] T
To Soakaway 5.00
———————SSS== metres away and
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION 1m3 capacity using
scale 1-100 scale 1-100 scale 1-100 1xovommc m_lon—A 1;2 Mﬁm_m Hlmoo _u0_<wﬁ01_4.. crates
- R N , , A
N ~ N
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE-CARPORT AND CONNSERVATORY. accordance with Part 'K' of Building Regulations. m\.ﬁ [
CONSTRUCT NEW BEDROOM,SHOWER ROOM,WC,UTILITY,SITTING ROOM AND LIVING -KITCHEN Install electric extract fans to kitchen, bathroom, WC and Utility rooms all operational from the lighting L |
SPACE. switch except in the kitchen and giving 60 litres/second extract rate. 2 200 5001
o . . . HEATING-Fit new gas fired boiler heating system and Insulate all new pipe work in accordance with Part 1600 | 750
_»oo_"_zm..xoodn covering in BBA >_o_o_‘o<ma fibreglass roofing system on 20mm ply decking on 100mm L of Building Regulations. Boiler will be condensing type and located as required by the owners and fully Block window Create A A ‘\J..?G“\J
.xq,%m._‘B insulation on Hm:.:s v._< or m.ﬁmﬂ__:m.gma on 0-75 *_:‘_:m pieces giving fall on eco-joisting system  compliant with the manufactures instructions and Pat J of Building Regulations. opening door T
including all roof lantern trimming joists designed and supplied by Lincframe Lincoln Ltd.and lantern DRAINAGE - The existing foul drain running across the site will be water tested and checked for opening
designed and supplied by specialist Finish the ceiling with 15mm plaster board and skim on a vapour adequacy by the contractor and if not fully compliant will be replaced in 110mm diameter PVC and is — T - 7
control layer. The roof joists will be set so that the ceiling heights match those of the existing house. subject to a Build Over Agreement with Anglian Water and will comply with their requirements. J, ﬁ
Provide 100mm x S0mm softwood wall-plates fixed down using 30 x 5 x 100 x 1000mm galvanised straps Al rainwater will discharge to the existing surface water system which will be checked out on site by the 2000 7 |
at 1800 centres. Straps taken down the wall 1.0metre and turned into the wall bed joint by 75mm. contractor. Any new soakaway in the rear garden will be at least 5.00 metres from the extended ,
. . . . ‘ Ay y ) ; 5510 , 7
At each side of the roof provide 4 No. 30 x 5 x 100 1400mm galvanised straps at 1200 centres fixed. over  dwelling. This will be formed using Polystorm crates wrapped in terram 1m3 capacity.
3no. roof joists and hooked down into the cavity 100mm as lateral restraints. 100 x 50mm noggins Use 100 half round pvc gutters, 63 diameter rainwater pipes. KITCHEN ,_N\_mm_Aos 2 ﬂ
between members to receive straps. Consent to have rainwater guttering over the neighbours boundary line will be sought before the work NORTH opening o 7
EXTERNAL WALLS-New 300mm cavity wall construction to the extension with 100mm matching brick  commences on site as will that for any foundation projection to the neighbours land : Rebuild full ht Pier in
. . . . . . . y pro) 8 . Create opening and Install UTILITY 7
leaf, 100mm cavity with 100mm dritherm insulation batts and 100mm medium weight concrete blocks New drainage for both foul and surface water will be 100mm polypipe laid to 1/40 falls surrounded in 2no 254x146x37 UB sofid brickwork E/E to W
with 3.5N/mm2 strength with12.5 plaster board and skim on dabs (0.28w/m?k). Use insulated catnic pea gravel or concrete where these are under the building with RC lintels where these pass through the above with 300mm ~ footings Bond to | |
lintels over all structural openings unless otherwise specified on the plans with heavy duty type over the new external walls. Hide the existing bathroom soil stack at first floor at high level in timber studding Bearing E/E existing masonry leaf « |
bi-folding doors to the side elevation Lintels will generally have a minimum of 150 end bearing. All \ith plaster board and skim finish. The new bathroom at ground floor will have a stub stack with air A L P — stm,v 7
cavities will be closed using insulated pvc cavity closures round openings. External and internal walls to release valve set 1.00metre above the new hand basin. New wastes from the shower will be 40mm S==g=Z========p====z=z==2==22=2==2=5==22=2=22:== T ,
have 2000 gauge :x_Oma dpc positioned .Hmo m_co<m mqoc:a. level mﬁmqsm_:\ linked to a 2000 gauge 85& diameter and basin 35mm, both fitted with deep sealed anti-siphon traps. ,ﬁ 3= ot o 4 7
tray dpc to maintain the radon protection continuous with the inner block wall dpc. Use 7.0 N/mm? ENERGY LIGHTING-Provide 75% energy efficient lighting throughout internally using lamps which each Existing 7 A ) ) v mn_ammi © 7 s
concrete blocks or suitably approved 3.50 N/mmz2 blocks below ground level with lean mix cavity filing have a maximum have a luminous efficacy of more than 45 lumen-watts. External lighting fixed to the Adjacent ! abovel |
up to 225mm below the internal wall dpc. Unless specified Internal partition walls will be constructed building to have controls that ensure all lights go off when there is sufficient daylight and also extinguish extension 7 Internal grade 7 ,
using 100mm concrete blocks at 3.5N/mm2 strength with 12.5mm plaster board on dabs finish. Use in darkness when they are not needed for use. All electrical services will comply with the Domestic Existing £ | ! DINING ROOM double sealed _ | _
approved wall ties positioned at 450mm centres vertically and horizontally. For cavities up to 100 wide Building Services Compliance Guide and appropriate installers commissioning and certification will be sm__mdw”,_mmo”ﬁ% | screw %,%/T N
use wall ties to BS.EN 845-1 and DD 140-2 as table 5 of approved document A of Building Regulations provided to the BCB on completion. Retained | R — P chamber | 7 |
2010.Provide 2000 gauge cavity tray dpc's over all external wall lintels and fit pvc weep hole slots in the ELECTRICAL WORK-The Electrical installation to comply with all current standards, IEE and NICEIC 7 4480 _ AN i _ 7 /, %
brickwork course above the lintel in the outer leaf . Ensure that cavity wall insulation is carried up Guidance notes and BS.7671:2001.The installation will be tested and certified upon completion by a Ownership Boundary § | i o i = 7 " ,
vertically into eaves to meet with roof insulation to avoid cold bridging at eaves level. All new walls will Competent Installer/electrician and notified to the Building Control Authority and the property owner. e ny | Re-all . I 7 | I 7 Oblique
be fully bonded to each other by bonding in the block work or by using approved stainless steel vertical Al electrical work will be required to meet the standards of Part P (Electrical Safety) and will be aiviaic el .-,------...------._..----.mu_mm_ww_w.m.@m_zm Drainage ! 7 : Connection
bonding profiles. The old garage door will be removed and the front wall built up in cavity work as designed, installed, inspected and tested by a person competent to do so. Prior to completion the connection 7 7 o "IIIIH__.IIII._,....-------...---. L T , to mains
described above. The contractor will check for existing foundations and place new foundations as Council must be satisfied that Part P has been complied with. This will require an appropriate BS 7671 tomains - gl 8 _ _ _ 7 %0 — - ﬁ\
required and noted below. . . . . electrical installation certificate to be issued for the work by a person competent to do so ( Part P Lo 7 7 _ _ _ , | K oll- | ’
STUD WALLS- New stud walls will be 90x47 CLS timber faced each side with 15mm plaster board and registered contractor). The contractor will provide sufficient electrical socket outlets and lighting points , : _ A _ -~ BATH 7
skim with 100mm sound quilt inside the studding etc. as required by owners 7 7 _ PIRN | LIVING ROOM I ROOM | |
. ) . . . : : _ _ |
GROUND FLOORS -Lay 75mm screed (with underfloor heating system if required by the owners) as provide electric extract fan to the en-suite to the external air giving 60 litres/second extract rate in the | \ L7 AN “A‘ i I N 7
designed by the heating engineer on100mm Xtratherm insulation board on 1200 gauge polythene with external wall. 7 7 Vo N j 2000 ﬁ | !
150mm concrete slab reinforced with A252 mesh with 40mm bottom concrete cover in the floor spaces GENERAL-The property owner is to comply in all respects with the Party Wall Act 1996 (if appropriate). Existing External ! ! 1.5x3.5m ! ” 7
where the foul sewer/drain passes through on 1200 gauge radon proof polythene dpm will be laid over The contractor will comply with all Health and Safety requirements and Construction (Design and Wall along boundary | Lantern | ”
| rooflight
on 150mm thick well compacted clean stone hard-core .Floor levels to match the existing kitchen floor Management) Regulations and The Buildings Regulations 2000 (As Amended). Retained ! ! g ! : 7
level. If underfloor heating is not provided the floor insulation will still be laid over the concrete oversite The contractor will check and confirm all constructional and relevant dimensions on site prior to - | 3000 |
) ) p H Roof Eco-joist Span , 7 [
m>__m“_u. o . . . commencing of any work on site. | | 3510 535 | | 7
existing foundations and floor slabs will be completely removed from site. Part L-Conservation of Fuel and Power. 7 A 7 ;
FOUNDATIONS- Provide new 600mm and 450mm wide trench filled concrete foundations to 600mm to New Extensions: Part L1B applies to the work shown on these plans and therefore the elements of the , , 7
1000mm below ground level into firm ground and 1.00metre deep if in clay and down at least to the pyilding will be constructed and insulated to the following standards: 7 7 7 m 7 H_mnnﬁ , mm | 8 7 :
depth of the existing house to good bearing ground as inspected on site and approved by Building Flat Warm Roof 0.16 W/m2K. i F\wm\}\l‘} I QR | R N 7 BEDROOM S 7
Control Surveyor. External Walls 0.28 W/m2K. Roof covering in BBA Approved fibreglass roofing 535 : o J, , 7 |
WINDOWS/ VENTILATION- Windows and new doors supplied and fitted in pvc-colour to owners choice Floors 0.22W/m2K. system on 20mm ply decking on 100mm xtrtherm ! I ] \,Wﬁ 7 , 7
and fitted with 28mm double glazed guaranteed sealed units with a U value of 1.60w/m2k and WER \yindows 1.60 W/m2K. MMMMMQMMM*Wm_._ﬁ”)mﬂ_w.wm“ﬂhmmmwmﬂwsmﬂcm_wwwH__ﬂzsm ! = ﬁ 7 ,
Band C rating. The new window frame will have a 5000mm? trickle ventilator at the head position fitted Al doors 1.80 W/m2K. roof lantern trimming joists designed and supplied by ! S 7 o Roof Eco-joist Span , ﬁ
with a draught proof cover. Opening windows are to give the equivalent opening of 1/20th of the floor |, || cases the builder will adopt the Robust Details for construction as good practice to limit heat loss , Lincframe Lincoln Ltd. Finish the ceiling with 15mm “ S S 7 7 ,
area in ventilation openings to each room which they serve. Windows to be set 30mm on to inside block jr |eakage and thermal bridging. The Extended Heating Systems will have associated controls which No Guttering to 1.5 x 3.5m Lantern plaster board and skim on a vapour control layer _ ﬁ Sl N ! ﬁ
work and sealed in place using mastic sealants for draught proofing. meet the standards of The Domestic Heating Compliance Guide, specifically tables 1 and 2 on pages adjacent property 80253&// ! L !
GLAZING-All glazing to doors/windows and sidelights in critical locations to be safety glass to BS 6206, in 12-15 inclusive. The competent installer will provide a declaration/certificate to the owner of the boundary [ ! “““““K I W
building and Building Control that the installation and commissioning procedures have been followed 300mm cavity wall ! 1800 x 1350 I N
satisfactorily. All gas systems will be installed by a Gas Safe registered and approved engineer. Existing R construction with ! e — P2 2
ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS External Wall / Create opening and Install ~"" Sct 2¢r0ss | { 100mm outer brick | LE
The works are to comply in all aspects with the current Building Regulations 2015 and British Standards along 210 254x146x37 UB above | | work leaf,100mm i /
and Codes of Practice. The Building Contractor is to ensure that the work is undertaken in accordance UMMMMU_MM above y Mm.,\ﬂ,\ with 5_033 ! Td soakaway 5.00 \\
with the approved plans. The Building Contractor will provide adequate notice of the commencement of LIVING ROOM | | - cmﬁmﬂﬁ_uwmhﬁs ! metres away and 1,7
the works to the Building Control provider to ensure that the work is certificated on completion with all = S BATH medium weight ! 1m3 capacity using
critical stage inspections completed by the Building Control Surveyor. & 75mm screed on 100mm concrete ROOM concrete blocks ! Polystorm crates
Positions of all existing boundaries, walls, drains and services are to be verified by the Building slab HNMO mmcmﬂ. uon_uﬁsmsm%ua _mmﬂ !
- . | _ H B H HPH H underneath and over the top o A4
§ ] \m_ Tne mm::,m_gﬂ_, M:M n__ﬁ_&mh; m_:mh_,ﬁoﬁnﬂsﬁ_m_”nwsg__m:ﬁ o:dn ﬁr_,m ,RM_%.MM_, w:am nm*_&mw_:q,__mhan m:<qcc_ra_:m 3wﬁm~:m_m. 100mm Xtratherm insulation board Provide new 600mm v
% ese mn.m uilding Lontracto wi .m ully co .<m. sa twi and adopt all measu m.m ecessary 1o giving a U value of 0.22 w/m2k wide trench filled PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
\ comply with Health and Safety legislation for Building Sites and Work Places. The builder must comply W concrete foundations to scale 1-50
W with all aspects of the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations and notify the project to the o ; : __ 600mm to 1000mm
r W Health & Safety Inspectorate where appropriate. KK \\\\/ : , = = //\\/// wm_os macga level _ﬂ_mﬁoQ
| Structural steel beams and supporting piers will be installed in accordance with designs supplied by Brian B SN SN SIS o S S Ty "M ground as Insper'e
\ pporting p §Ns supplied by N AR ARG ARG R o/ ite and db
LOUNGE | . m Carr Structural Engineer, beams will be cased in 12.5mm plaster board and skim to give half hour fire x \/\\/ SN AN AN AN AN AN N AN /\\\//\\\ A NM\\//\//\ N /\\//\\/\ R mmm_mﬁ_:mm mo”_ﬁw_1 veey
m IW For the avoidance of doubt King Design Lincoln Ltd. are not the principle designers beyond the Building K N PROPOSED Sl 7 7 7
m “& Control Plan approval stage. KK & SECTION A-A K | — | |
L m I\ R ‘ scale 1-50 ST Description Date Drwn
| ol
m | | \ APPLICANT Mr John shear
WW\\\\% I 0 W
mw L m ADDRESS 4 Southland Drive
mm S~ | Lincoln
\mm KITCHEN LN6 8AU
\ =l
\\\\m\\ — w\\%\\\\\“ . KING DESIGN LINCOLN LTD.
] )
ising mw g 44 Park Lane Heighington Lincoln LN4 1RF
fosionll I
'
m Tel:01522 825995 Mob:07932403334
e e L :
ain ({10 Ly T
83%:3 m T PROJECT. 4 Southland drive Extension
to mains m zow-—-—l—
m KITCHEN No. DOM_85
|
m R DWG TITLE. Proposed Plans & Elevations
m GARAGE _ _
| [ DWG No. REV
2 T T T
| | e 1001 G
\ [T 1
[T 1
[T 1
EXISTING GROUND ‘ s SITE LOCATION PLAN Scale 1-1250 DRWNBY. PK  |CHECKEDEY.
FLOOR PLAN
scale 1-100 EXISTING REAR ELEVATION EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION SCALE. AT@ VARIES |DATE 12/08/18
scale 1-100 scale 1-100 scale 1-100 AT
AT PRELIMINARY

87



This page is intentionally blank.



89



90



91



This page is intentionally blank.



Lincolnshire:

Place Directorate COUNTY COLMCIL

Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street

Lincoln LN1T 1xX
Tel: (01522) 732070
E-Mai: highwayssudssupportiflincolnshire.gov.uk

To:  Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2019/019%/HOU

With reference to this application dated 8 March 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location

4 Southland Drive, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LNG 8AU
Date application refemed by the LPA Type of application: Outline/Full/REM/:
22 March 2019 HH

Descrption of development

Erection of single storey side and rear extension. (Resubmission from
20181064/HOU)

Motice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authorty:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)

NO OBS

Having given due regard to the approprate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the Mational Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed
development is acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning
application.

H106

The site is located within an area at risk from surface water flooding. Therefore, in
accordance with the NPPF, the submission of a Flood Risk Assessment, which also
considers the provision of appropriate mitigation works, is recommended. This will enable
the Local Planning Authority to satisfy themselves that the risk of flooding from surface
water has been adequately addressed.

Case Officer: Date: 10 April 2019

Polly Smith
for Warren Peppard
Flood Risk & Development Manager

93



Consultee Comments for Planning Application
2019/0199/HOU

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0199/HOU

Address: 4 Southland Drive Lincoln Lincolnshire LN6 8AU

Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extension. (Resubmission of 2018/1064/HOU)
Case Officer: Craig Everton

Consultee Details

Name: Mr lan Wicks

Address: Directorate Of Development And Environmental Services, City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, Lincolnshire LN1 1DF

Email: ian.wicks@lincoln.gov.uk

On Behalf Of: Environmental Health

Comments
| confirm that | have no observations to make regarding this application.

Objection from Neighbour

From: John Staniforth

Sent: 15 April 2019 19:16

To: Everton, Craig (City of Lincoln Council)

Subject: Re: 2019/0199/HOU- 4 Southland Drive - Erection of single storey side and rear extension. (Resubmission of 2018/1064/HOU)

Hello Craig,

I'would like to raise one objection based on the plan as it appears to me.

As | have said before if the wall is extended higher | cannot see how it can fit in with our current extension roof - it would damage it. Our extension has been there for over 20 years as it was already built before we bought
the house.

Also the situation with foundations.

0On the previous application, they moved the wall in to avoid this.

Therefore | object on this as it currently is shown.

Of course, if | can be given assurances and proof that this will not be the case.
Thank you.

Regards

John Staniforth

94



Iltem No. 4d

Application Number: | 2019/0305/RG3

Site Address: Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln

Target Date: 7th June 2019

Agent Name: None

Applicant Name: Mr Simon Lawson

Proposal: Addition of metal gates to garden shelter to protect building.

Background - Site Location and Description

The application relates to the shelter to the south east corner of Temple Gardens, situated
on Lindum Hill on the eastern side of the city centre.

The application building is Grade Il listed by virtue of its curtilage relationship with the
Usher Art Gallery and located within Conservation Area No. 1 '‘Cathedral and City Centre'.

There is a separate but related application for listed building consent for the proposed
works (2019/0306/LBC).

Site History

Reference: Description Status Decision Date:

2019/0306/LBC Addition of metal gates | Pending Decision
to garden shelter to
protect building and
associated repairs.
(Listed Building
Consent) (Revised
Description)

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 17th April 2019.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
e Policy LP25 The Historic Environment
e Policy LP29 Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character
¢ National Planning Policy Framework
Issues

e National and local planning policy
e Potential impact on the significance of heritage assets

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

95



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Principal Conservation Officer | Comments Received

Lincoln Civic Trust No Response Received

Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

No responses received.

Consideration

The application proposes the fitting of wrought iron gates to the front elevation of the
shelter.

National and Local Planning Policy

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides specific
protection for buildings and areas of special architectural or historic interest. Any decisions
relating to listed buildings and their settings and conservation areas must address the
statutory considerations of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 as well as satisfying the relevant policies within the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF, 2019).

Paragraph 192 of the NPPF (2019) requires local planning authorities to take account of
the following issues in determining applications which may affect heritage assets and their
settings;

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character
and distinctiveness

Policy LP25 'Historic Environment' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) is
permissive of alterations to Listed Buildings, provided the proposal is in the interest of the
building's preservation an does not involve activities or alterations prejudicial to the special
architectural or historic interest of the Listed Building or its setting.

Potential Impact on the Significance of Heritage Assets

Constructed in red brick with concrete dressings and a flat roof, the shelter has a classical
composition comprising an open front with two Doric columns and flanking brick pilasters

96




and flanking walls with steel-framed windows. The structure derives its architectural
significance from its relationship with the Grade II* Usher Art Gallery and historic value
derived from its original purpose as a shelter within the pleasure gardens, reinforcing the
social status of the overall site and the development of public gardens for the general
public as a leisure purpose. Furthermore, it makes an important contribution to the
significance of the Usher Art Gallery by enhancing its setting and reinforcing its
architectural and historic values. Given its location the site is also very prominent within
the conservation area with views from the public path up Lindum Hill.

The shelter has been subject to long term vandalism including localised fires and detritus
from anti-social use and has become unsafe for use by the general public. The proposal
seeks to provide a means of gated enclosure so that access to the shelter can be
controlled and further damage avoided.

The council's Principal Conservation Officer has considered the application and
commented "Pre-application discussions have resulted in the proposed design which is
considered to satisfy the requirement for a simple architectural approach, commensurate
with the clean lines of the shelter. Setting the gates behind the columns and achieving the
requisite permeability satisfies the objectives of preserving the original features as the
most dominant elements and the legibility of the ‘temple like' open facade. Furthermore,
the manner of attachment would ensure no harmful impact on the historic fabric of the
shelter”

It is, therefore, considered that the proposed works are in the interests of the building's
preservation and would not be prejudicial to its special architectural or historic interest, in
accordance with Policy LP25 'Historic Environment' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2017) and relevant guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019). Consequently, subject to further details to be secured by condition, the proposed
development is in accordance with the duty contained within section 72 (1) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Lincoln Townscape Assessment

The application site is located in the Lindum Hill Character Area which is situated on the
steepest part of the north escarpment on the eastern side of the city centre and contains
properties that are used for a mixture of residential, civic and service functions. A large
proportion of the Character Area consists of open space, the majority of which is within the
public Temple Gardens (the application site). Remaining open space in the area consists
of mature garden plots to the rear of houses in the northern half of the area.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes, at pre-application (details in report).

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

97



Equality Implications

None.
Conclusion

These works will secure the future of the shelter, guarding against further damage and
allowing the shelter in the future to once again fulfil its optimum viable use and preserve
the setting of the Usher Art Gallery and preserve and enhance the character and
appearance of the conservation area. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal is in
accordance with the duty contained within section 72 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 'In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other
land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving
or enhancing the character or appearance of that area’,

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is granted conditionally.
Standard Conditions

01) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this
consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
the drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the
approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the
application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved
plans.

Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works
None.

Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented
None.

Conditions to be adhered to at all times

None.

98



Table A

The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings
identified below:

Drawing No. Version | Drawing Type Date Received
160428/015 Plans - Existing 11th April 2019
160428/017 Elevations 11th April 2019
160428/016 Plans - Proposed 11th April 2019

99




00T

2019/0306/LBC — Plans and Photographs

Thils dralng b Isesed for the sobe aod schusbe ven of e
raarmed raclolent, Dlatritlon to mry Tl party b on the sirks
ety s sccuped By Plek Evarass
, TSP oF armiislons i My be
guaraniss |s ofersd a5 io the secarecy of

‘ Usher Galle [ Temple Gardens
|
Seulpture Pluus

My oy ek
cxcr vt b B in s P grr il e pa e eotn]
Fars b e Cmalgr Ak daswmnrwads akch ey

rLanding eLevaTion FRONT ELEVATION

FLANKING ELEVATION cmuss secTlon

Unesln Ciy Counell
T

FICK EVE

A s

e
ARBORETUM & TEMPLE GONS

STAIES & SHELTER WORKS
PLAR — =
S She & s Bl s
150 Al
BT =
16042006 &




This drawing | lssuns for i sols oed exchude s of e
rearmed maclzlent, Dlatrltatlon to sy Sl party |s on the eiris
andirslanding thanl no Bibllty s acsemed by Pl Fusnas
Tor wny diacrapancles, amors o omlislons e may be
G, and NO GUIRaNInE 15 STened as |0 th aocunacy of
Informallon shown

Hr e ok
[

= M - i
e il —
=T | "lmul H ==
s |m !ll_'l_l |_|i I s
.

==

TOT

FLANHMG FLEVATIOH FRONT ELEWATION FLANG ELEVATICN GROER SECTION (A TES CLOSED] GROER SECTIOR (4 TES OPEN)

i.l-'l;c-nlru:wmn-:ll e

v
FPICK EVERARD
i s

W
e e S

-
FLAN ARBORETUM & TEMPLE GONS
STAIRS & SHELTER WORKS rrd—

e Ty =

Ehefwr. ocoted Caotes




102



103



104



Lincolnshire

Place Directorate COUNTY COUNCIL

Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street
Lincoin LNT 1XX

Tel: (01522) 782070
E-Mail: highwayssudssuppori@lincolnshire.gov.uk

To: Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2013/0305/RG3

With reference to this application dated 11 April 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location
Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln

Date application referred by the LPA Type of application: Outline/Full/RM/:
26 April 2019 FUL
Description of development

Addition of metal gates to garden shelter to protect building

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)
NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed
development is acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning

application.

Case Officer: Date: 15 May 2019
Polly Smith

for Warren Peppard

Flood Risk & Development Manager

105




This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 4e

Application Number: | 2019/0306/LBC

Site Address: Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln (LBC)

Target Date: 7th June 2019

Agent Name: None

Applicant Name: Mr Simon Lawson

Proposal: Addition of metal gates to garden shelter to protect building
and associated repairs. (Listed Building Consent) (Revised
Description)

Background - Site Location and Description

The application relates to the shelter to the south east corner of Temple Gardens, situated
on Lindum Hill on the eastern side of the city centre.

The application building is Grade Il listed by virtue of its curtilage relationship with the
Usher Art Gallery and located within Conservation Area No. 1 ‘Cathedral and City Centre'.

There is a separate but related application for planning permission for the proposed works
(2019/0305/RG3).

Site History

Reference: Description Status Decision Date:

2019/0305/RG3 Addition of metal gates | Pending Decision
to garden shelter to
protect building.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 17th April 2019.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
e Policy LP25 The Historic Environment
e Policy LP29 Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character
e National Planning Policy Framework
Issues

¢ National and local planning policy
¢ Potential impact on the significance of heritage assets

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

107



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Highways & Planning Comments Received

Principal Conservation Officer | Comments Received

Lincoln Civic Trust No Response Received

Public Consultation Responses

No responses received.

Consideration

The application proposes the fitting of wrought iron gates to the front elevation of the
shelter, limited cleaning and pointing of masonry, and the repair of benches and windows.

National and Local Planning Policy

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides specific
protection for buildings and areas of special architectural or historic interest. Any decisions
relating to listed buildings and their settings and conservation areas must address the
statutory considerations of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 as well as satisfying the relevant policies within the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF, 2019).

Paragraph 192 of the NPPF (2019) requires local planning authorities to take account of
the following issues in determining applications which may affect heritage assets and their
settings;

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character
and distinctiveness

Policy LP25 'Historic Environment' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) is
permissive of alterations to Listed Buildings, provided the proposal is in the interest of the
building's preservation an does not involve activities or alterations prejudicial to the special
architectural or historic interest of the Listed Building or its setting.

Potential Impact on the Significance of Heritage Assets

Constructed in red brick with concrete dressings and a flat roof, the shelter has a classical
composition comprising an open front with two Doric columns and flanking brick pilasters
and flanking walls with steel-framed windows. The structure derives its architectural

108




significance from its relationship with the Grade II* Usher Art Gallery and historic value
derived from its original purpose as a shelter within the pleasure gardens, reinforcing the
social status of the overall site and the development of public gardens for the general
public as a leisure purpose. Furthermore, it makes an important contribution to the
significance of the Usher Art Gallery by enhancing its setting and reinforcing its
architectural and historic values. Given its location the site is also very prominent within
the conservation area with views from the public path up Lindum Hill.

The shelter has been subject to long term vandalism including localised fires and detritus
from anti-social use and has become unsafe for use by the general public. The proposal
seeks to provide a means of gated enclosure so that access to the shelter can be
controlled and further damage avoided.

The council's Principal Conservation Officer has considered the application and
commented "Pre-application discussions have resulted in the proposed design which is
considered to satisfy the requirement for a simple architectural approach, commensurate
with the clean lines of the shelter. Setting the gates behind the columns and achieving the
requisite permeability satisfies the objectives of preserving the original features as the
most dominant elements and the legibility of the ‘temple like' open facade. Furthermore,
the manner of attachment would ensure no harmful impact on the historic fabric of the
shelter”

It is, therefore, considered that the proposed works are in the interests of the building's
preservation and would not be prejudicial to its special architectural or historic interest, in
accordance with Policy LP25 'Historic Environment' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan
(2017) and relevant guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019). Consequently, subject to further details to be secured by condition, the proposed
development is in accordance with the duty contained within section 16(2) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

Lincoln Townscape Assessment

The application site is located in the Lindum Hill Character Area which is situated on the
steepest part of the north escarpment on the eastern side of the city centre and contains
properties that are used for a mixture of residential, civic and service functions. A large
proportion of the Character Area consists of open space, the majority of which is within the
public Temple Gardens (the application site). Remaining open space in the area consists
of mature garden plots to the rear of houses in the northern half of the area.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes, at pre-application (details in report).

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

109



Equality Implications

None.
Conclusion

The proposed works would secure the future of the shelter, guarding against further
damage and allowing the shelter in the future to once again fulfil its optimum viable use
and preserve the setting of the Usher Art Gallery and preserve and enhance the character
and appearance of the conservation area. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal is in
accordance with the duty contained within section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 'In considering whether to grant listed building consent
for any works the local planning authority or the Secretary of State shall have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses', Policy LP25 'Historic Environment' of
the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) and relevant guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is granted conditionally.
Standard Conditions

01) The Works must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning
with the date of this permission

Reason: Imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990

02) With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this
consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
the drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the
approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the
application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved
plans.

Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works

03) Sample of mortar for repointing to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to
repointing works being carried out

Reason: In the interests of retaining the architectural significance of the building

04) Sample of timber for repairs to bench to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority

110



prior to bench repairs being carried out
Reason: In the interests of retaining the architectural significance of the building

05) A sample area of brick cleaning using high pressure steam to be selected, carried
out and agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to these works being carried
out

Reason: In the interests of retaining the architectural significance of the building

06) Details of colour finish of gates to be submitted and agreed by the Local Planning
Authority prior to painting being carried out

Reason: In the interests of retaining the architectural significance of the building
Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented

None.
Conditions to be adhered to at all times

None.

Table A

The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings
identified below:

Drawing No. Version | Drawing Type Date Received
160428/015 Plans - Existing 11th April 2019
160428/017 Elevations 11th April 2019
1602448/016 Plans - Proposed 11th April 2019

111




AN

2019/0306/LBC — Plans and Photographs

| \ Usher Galles
|

TN

oo gt | S0

Access Path

YL L=
™ o ™

O

Sculpture Places

Seuth Gate -
\L_/

Ay Temple Gardens
I

rLaHiinG eLevaTion FRONT ELEVATIGN

This drawling ke lsmunc for e sobe ood eschelve ves of Fe
raarmed mclalent, Dlstrutlon 1o ary B party b on tha sirke
Dbty s aeapted By Plo Evain
s, wimers or mjsjons Fa msy be
o guaraniess |5 ofered as i the sccuracy of
Iniomalkon sown

DM AESIUAL MEEE

Hiemg nnkn
o vt a7y B i s g il W pnah ot
reomanwe e bena bl wht b dha D o Ak dmsmserwats ok oy

ek
emrancs wao

;'-lulnﬂhlcwull dlacin
PICK EVERARD
an A e

ARBORETUM, B TEMPLE GORS ™24 ==
STAIRS & SHELTER WORKS =

PLAN — =
Shar. Sha & A1 Bxbfing R T
1250 o Al
B =
LMD (A




€Tt

[ v

R

]

CRTLNNET
SEeERhe

FLANMHG FLEVATIGH

ERONT ELEVATION FLANgNG FLEVATICN GRCES KECTIOH [OATES CLOSED)

LAk

CROES RECTION [QATES OPEH)

This drawling ke lssnd for ie aoke svd exchudve won of 0
rearmved ruchzlen!, Bletrieatlon bo ary Sl party b on the st
anderstanding thial no Batllty s accepmed by Pl Evans
Tor any dacrapanclia, erom of omfisjons Bl may be
precEl, and N0 GUAENTIDE |5 OTored as In the aocuracy of
Inioomalon shown

SO - RESIGUAL MER
L e e i
memmea e b Bafled wif e 4 o Lk Assmaerwod ol nay
]

Umcaln Clty Councl| ff—._-_n
S g
e ST
PICK EVERARD
ati e
E:H

s
ARBORE UM & TEMPLE GOng © 5™
STAIRS & SHELTER WORKS i

e [P

Sheler. Sopoed Doles —
1:52 aral
] B




114



115



116



Lincolnshire:-

Place Directorate COURTY COUMCIL |

Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street

Lincoln LMN1 1XX
Tel: (D1522) 732070
E-Mai: highwayssudssupportiiincoinshire govuk

Tao: Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2019/0306/LBC

With reference to this application dated 16 April 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location

Usher Art Gallery Lindum Road Lincoln Lincolnshire LN2 1NN
Date application referred by the LPA Type of application:
16 April 2019 Outline/FUulVRM/: FLB

Description of development

Addition of metal gates to garden shelter to protect building. (Listed Building
Consent)

Motice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
CONDITIONS {(INCLUDING REASONS)
NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy
guidance (in particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire
County Council (as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Autharity) has
concluded that the proposed development is acceptable and accordingly, does not
wish to abject to this planning application.

Case Officer: Date: 03 May 2019
Martin Nash

for Warren Peppard
Flood Risk & Development Manager

117




This page is intentionally blank.



	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 24 April 2019
	3 Work to Trees in City Council Ownership
	4a Application for Development: 8 Top Lodge Close, Lincoln
	8 Top Lodge Close plans and photos
	8 Top Lodge Close consultation responses

	4b Application for Development: 97 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln
	97 Boultham Park Road plans and photos
	97 Boultham Park Road consultation responses

	4c Application for Development: 4 Southland Drive, Lincoln
	4 Southland Grove proposed and Existing photos
	4 Southland Grove site photos
	4 Southland Drive Responses

	4d Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln
	4e Usher Art Gallery, Lindum Road, Lincoln (LBC)

